
                    CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

 

                              15728 Main Street, Mill Creek, WA 98012 (425) 745-1891 

  
 

  

 

Pam Pruitt, Mayor • Brian Holtzclaw, Mayor Pro Tem 

Mark Bond • Mike Todd • Vince Cavaleri • John Steckler • Stephanie Vignal 
   

 

Regular meetings of the Mill Creek City Council shall be held on the first, second and fourth Tuesdays of 
each month commencing at 6:00 p.m. in the Mill Creek Council Chambers located at 15728 Main Street, Mill 
Creek, Washington. Your participation and interest in these meetings are encouraged and very much 
appreciated. We are trying to make our public meetings accessible to all members of the public. If you 
require special accommodations, please call the office of the City Clerk at (425) 921-5725 three days prior to 
the meeting.  

 

The City Council may consider and act on any matter called to its attention at such meetings, whether or not 
specified on the agenda for said meeting. Participation by members of the audience will be allowed as set 
forth on the meeting agenda or as determined by the Mayor or the City Council.  

 

To comment on subjects listed on or not on the agenda, ask to be recognized during the Audience 
Communication portion of the agenda. Please stand at the podium and state your name and residency for 
the official record. Please limit your comments to the specific item under discussion. Time limitations shall be 
at the discretion of the Mayor or City Council.  

 

Study sessions of the Mill Creek City Council may be held as part of any regular or special meeting. Study 
sessions are informal, and are typically used by the City Council to receive reports and presentations, review 
and evaluate complex matters, and/or engage in preliminary analysis of City issues or City Council business.  

   

 

Next Ordinance No. 2019-846 

Next Resolution No. 2019-578 

February 19, 2019 

Special City Council Meeting 

6:00 PM 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION 
 

A. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda   
 
STUDY SESSION 
 

B. The Farm at Mill Creek - Process for Consideration and Proposed Vision 

(Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager)   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

C. AWC Center for Quality Communities Scholarship Nominee Selection  

(City Council Selection Committee: Councilmember Todd & Councilmember Steckler)   
 



D. Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforcement  

(Gina Hortillosa, Director of Public Works & Development Services)   
 

E. Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional Services Agreement 

(Gina Hortillosa, Director of Public Works & Development Services)    
F. Ratification of Proclamation of Local Emergency  

(Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager)   
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

G. Approval of Checks #59686 through #59811 and ACH Wire Transfers in the Amount  

of $1,766,567.94 

(Audit Committee: Councilmember Steckler and Councilmember Cavaleri)    
H. Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $204,917.11 

(Audit Committee: Councilmember Steckler and Councilmember Cavaleri)  
 
AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION 
 

I. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda  
 
REPORTS 
 

J. Mayor/Council  
 

K. City Manager  

• Council Planning Schedule 

• Storm Response Update  
 
ADJOURNMENT 

Page 2 of 148



v
=5

CITY or /-~.___,/,__ /—_

M111Creek Agenda Item #L
W A S H I N G T O N Meeting Date: February 19, 2019

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington

AGENDA ITEM: STUDY SESSION ON THE FARM AT MILL CREEK PROCESS
FOR CONSIDERATION AND PROPOSED VISION

PROPOSED MOTION:

No motion as no action is scheduled — Informational only.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:

In March 2018, the City received a development application for The Farm at Mill Creek, which is
located at 4008 132"“Street SE in the City’s East Gateway Urban Village (EGUV) zone. On April
13, 2018 the binding site plan application was deemed complete. One of the requirements of
developing in the EGUV zone district is for the developer to enter into a Development Agreement
(DA) with the City and have the DA approved by the City Council, per MCMC 17.19 and RCW
36.7OB.l70.

The purpose of this City Council study session is to provide background information on the
following:

1) The East Gateway Urban Village;
2) Binding Site Plan Review Process and Proportional Impact Mitigation Assessment

Process;
3) The Farm at Mill Creek Review Status; and,
4) Introduce the developer and allow him to share his vision of the project with the Council

prior to the Council conducting a future study session to review the proposed DA
(tentatively scheduled for February 26, 2019) and scheduling a public hearing date on the
DA.

In addition, the developer has committed to host a developer sponsored open house. The date for
the open house is Wednesday, February 20"‘from 5:00 p.m. — 7:00 p.m. at the Mill Creek Senior
Center. The purpose of the open house is to provide project information and allow the developer
to have direct discussions with the public prior to the City Council Public Hearing (not yet
scheduled) on the DA.

AGENDA ITEM #B.

The Farm at Mill Creek - Process for Consideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 3 of 148



City Council Agenda Summary
Page 2

CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:

Conduct the Study Session based on the identi?ed purposes.

ATTACHMENT:

0 Preliminary Binding Site Plan (Conceptual) — Attachment 1

/InterimCity Manager

AGENDA ITEM #B.

The Farm at Mill Creek - Process for Consideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 4 of 148



.a.u_....:..l........u.!.._..us
a

E
sau

vm
m

m
o :_.___2E

29¢
m

I._.
.3...-

.._.
ea

I
:1...

..
aux

.6.n..l...i

u
H

m
_<

._2:
¥||u

uuszu
uzcaé

m
m

m
z.E

\
w

ork:
w

uzann
,4,

m
>

0m
<

._<
=

zm
E

m
m

z

:5
.__<

B
z

m
m

sdw
xi

..w
>

w
._

m
zo .

d?m
z

xzoz:m
>

:

m
a<

..<
uu.m

.n
B

v.B
.E

o:..m

o.m
.«<

.3_~<
..<

.?E
.E

o5_

m
=

.§m
:

u=
5._:m

32:
cast?!

iczm
em

m
c

an

.<
:zm

n_m
ux

E
E

M
c

A
m

$43
.2.6»

.m
.m eS

.E
.

m
uz_n..=

m

.m
.m 98.3

m
oz_5_=

m

.....mE
.»

n
uzE

.__:m

W
m

?
=

5!
m

m
:.nm

x_=
._m

>
H

azacxo

u.m
m

tkn

.u.mcom
a.

.m
.m S

tc
.u_.mS

..."
.u_.m

S
an

m
m

m
S

.u

m
m

S
ad.

.25»

u
oz_a.__=

m

m
m

z_n:_=
m

3
oz_n.=

:m

.2
oz_a.__=

m

~<
w

z_n_.._=
m

2
uz_n_.__=

m

._m
>

m
._w

zo .
4_<

._.m
z

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (...
Page 5 of 148



East Gateway Urban Village & The 
Farm at Mill Creek

February 19, 2019

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 6 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 2

 Background on the East Gateway Urban 
Village (EGUV)

Introduction of Developer 
Project Vision

Purpose of Presentation

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 7 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 3

 EGUV Background

Master Development Plan Review 
Process

 The Farm at Mill Creek Review Status

Presentation by applicant- Project Vision

Presentation

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 8 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 4

On March 25, 2008, Council adopted the 
East Gateway Urban Village (EGUV) 
Subarea Plan:

Comprehensive Plan Amendments
Illustrative Master Plan
Implementing Development Regulations

EGUV Regulatory History

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 9 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 5

On July 1, 2008, Council adopted the 

EGUV Design Guidelines to direct 

architectural design.

EGUV Regulatory History

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 10 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 6

 In 2010 the City hired a consultant to 
prepare a Preliminary Engineering 
Study to provide infrastructure 
guidelines to developers

 The 30% design report took recent 
EGUV changes into account and was 
finalized in December 2012

EGUV Regulatory History

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 11 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 7

Policy 1.06: Medium and high density 
residential development is required in the 
EGUV.  High density residential above 
retail and/or office uses shall be 
encouraged in entire the EGUV zone.

EGUV Comp Plan Policies

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 12 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 8

 Policy 4.01: Create safe and efficient 
transportation network through entire site.  
Create a sustainable neighborhood supported 
by a diversity of businesses and types of 
residential development.  Create places that 
provide for the needs of a diverse population 
of different ages.

EGUV Comp Plan Policies

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 13 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 9

 Policy 4.02:  The design of EGUV should 
reflect an urban character with a wide mix of 
uses that generally cater to local residents in 
the City and its Municipal Urban Growth 
Area.
Policy 4.03: Mixed-use buildings with 
residences or offices over first floor 
commercial should be encouraged and 
oriented toward public realm.

EGUV Comp Plan Policies

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 14 of 148



Development Agreement – The Farm 10

EGUV Site Plan

Illustrative Master Plan - 2008

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 15 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 11

Purpose of MCMC 17.19 EGUV Zone District 
and related Development Regulations are 
intended to create a:

High quality, mixed-use neighborhood, with 
both commercial and multi-family uses 
organized around an internal road network 
(spine road).  

EGUV Zone District

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 16 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 12

EGUV Zone District

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 17 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 13

Development in the EGUV requires the 
approval of the Master Development 
Plan including:

A. Binding Site Plan (Hearing Examiner)
B. An evaluation of consistency with the 

adopted urban village design 
guidelines (Hearing Examiner)

C. Development Agreement (Council)

EGUV Zone District

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 18 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 14

EGUV Development History

 In 2011 first site development approved was 
The Gateway Building (2 lots still vacant)

 In 2012 Polygon
 In 2015 Primrose and Dental/Medical Building
 In 2015 Vintage at Mill Creek

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 19 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 15

Aerial of EGUV Zone Developments

N

1 – Primrose, Retail Building, Mill Creek Meadows Apt., The Towns at 
Mill Creek and Buffalo Park
2 - Advent Lutheran Church
3 – The Gateway Building
4 – Upper Cuts Hair Salon and Private Residence
5 - Vintage Senior Housing & Commercial at Mill Creek
6 - The Farm at Mill Creek – Under Review






A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 20 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 16

Environmental Impact Review
State Environmental Policy Act requires project 
assessment and mitigation of impacts to:

1. Earth
2. Air
3. Water
4. Plants
5. Animals
6. Energy and Natural Resources
7. Environmental Health
8. Land and Shoreline Use
9. Housing
10. Aesthetics
11. Light and Glare
12. Recreation (City Neighborhood $449,736 & Community Park $273,000 Impact Fees)
13. Historic and Cultural Preservation
14. Transportation (City Traffic Impact $1,098,000 Fees)
15. Public Services (School Impact $465,924 Fees)
16. Utilities

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 21 of 148

https://ecology.wa.gov/Regulations-Permits/SEPA/Environmental-review/SEPA-guidance/SEPA-checklist-guidance/SEPA-Checklist-Section-B-Environmental-elements/Environmental-elements-Earth
https://ecology.wa.gov/Regulations-Permits/SEPA/Environmental-review/SEPA-guidance/SEPA-checklist-guidance/SEPA-Checklist-Section-B-Environmental-elements/Environmental-elements-Air
https://ecology.wa.gov/Regulations-Permits/SEPA/Environmental-review/SEPA-guidance/SEPA-checklist-guidance/SEPA-Checklist-Section-B-Environmental-elements/Environmental-elements-3-Water
https://ecology.wa.gov/Regulations-Permits/SEPA/Environmental-review/SEPA-guidance/SEPA-checklist-guidance/SEPA-Checklist-Section-B-Environmental-elements/Environmental-elements-4-Plants
https://ecology.wa.gov/Regulations-Permits/SEPA/Environmental-review/SEPA-guidance/SEPA-checklist-guidance/SEPA-Checklist-Section-B-Environmental-elements/Environmental-elements-5-Animals
https://ecology.wa.gov/Regulations-Permits/SEPA/Environmental-review/SEPA-guidance/SEPA-checklist-guidance/SEPA-Checklist-Section-B-Environmental-elements/Environmental-elements-6-Energy-natural-resou
https://ecology.wa.gov/Regulations-Permits/SEPA/Environmental-review/SEPA-guidance/SEPA-checklist-guidance/SEPA-Checklist-Section-B-Environmental-elements/Environmental-elements-7-Environmental-health
https://ecology.wa.gov/Regulations-Permits/SEPA/Environmental-review/SEPA-guidance/SEPA-checklist-guidance/SEPA-Checklist-Section-B-Environmental-elements/Environmental-elements-8-Land-shoreline-use
https://ecology.wa.gov/Regulations-Permits/SEPA/Environmental-review/SEPA-guidance/SEPA-checklist-guidance/SEPA-Checklist-Section-B-Environmental-elements/Environmental-elements-9-Housing
https://ecology.wa.gov/Regulations-Permits/SEPA/Environmental-review/SEPA-guidance/SEPA-checklist-guidance/SEPA-Checklist-Section-B-Environmental-elements/Environmental-elements-10-Aesthetics
https://ecology.wa.gov/Regulations-Permits/SEPA/Environmental-review/SEPA-guidance/SEPA-checklist-guidance/SEPA-Checklist-Section-B-Environmental-elements/Environmental-elements-11-Light-glare
https://ecology.wa.gov/Regulations-Permits/SEPA/Environmental-review/SEPA-guidance/SEPA-checklist-guidance/SEPA-Checklist-Section-B-Environmental-elements/Environmental-elements-12-Recreation
https://ecology.wa.gov/Regulations-Permits/SEPA/Environmental-review/SEPA-guidance/SEPA-checklist-guidance/SEPA-Checklist-Section-B-Environmental-elements/Environmental-elements-13-Historic-cultural-p
https://ecology.wa.gov/Regulations-Permits/SEPA/Environmental-review/SEPA-guidance/SEPA-checklist-guidance/SEPA-Checklist-Section-B-Environmental-elements/Environmental-elements-14-Transportation
https://ecology.wa.gov/Regulations-Permits/SEPA/Environmental-review/SEPA-guidance/SEPA-checklist-guidance/SEPA-Checklist-Section-B-Environmental-elements/Environmental-elements-15-Public-services
https://ecology.wa.gov/Regulations-Permits/SEPA/Environmental-review/SEPA-guidance/SEPA-checklist-guidance/SEPA-Checklist-Section-B-Environmental-elements/Environmental-elements-16-Utilities


Development Agreement – The Farm 17

1. Submittal of Binding Site Plan
2. Completeness Letter
3. Technical Review Committee
4. 2/19 City Council Study Session EGUV/The Farm
5. Development Agreement 

• Council work session 
• Council public hearing

6. Issuance of SEPA Threshold Determination
7. Public Hearing on Binding Site Plan
8. Design Review Board
9. Clearing & Grading
10.Building Permits

The Farm Review Status

EGUV & The Farm

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 22 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 18

Applicant 
Introduction/Presentation

Vintage at Mill Creek
The Farm

354 units
26 live/work units
1202 parking stalls
Festival Area
Public open spaces A

G
EN

D
A ITEM

 #B
.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 23 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 19

Questions?

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 24 of 148



Background Information
(Not part of presentation and 
included in case needed) A

G
EN

D
A ITEM

 #B
.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 25 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 21

General Information: The Farm 
at Mill Creek 

Vintage at Mill Creek
The Farm

355 units
25 live/work units
1202 parking stalls
Festival Area
Public open spaces A

G
EN

D
A ITEM

 #B
.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 26 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 22

17 acres  
380 residential units (355 apartment units 
and 25 live/work units) approximately 344,720 
square feet
commercial space totals 68,600 square feet 
of retail space and 16,600 square feet of 
medical offices. Approx. 85,000 square feet
1,202 parking stalls (437 surface spaces and 
765 spaces in parking garages)

The Farm at Mill Creek

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 27 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 23

Development Agreement

Regional Benefit Area

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 28 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 24

Development Agreement

Regional Benefit Area

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 29 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 25

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 30 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 26

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 31 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 27

Purpose of DA is to set standards, 
conditions & other provisions that are 
outside of the City’s code requirement 
and obligate developer and/or City.

Development Agreement

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 32 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 28

• City Council review and approval of a 
Development Agreement for a 
pending application for Binding Site 
Plan

• Not consideration of Binding Site Plan

• Binding Site Plan consideration at later 
date by Hearing Examiner

Development Agreement 
Review Process

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 33 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 29

Development Agreement

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 34 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 30

Development Agreement Process

Applicant & City negotiated draft DA

Council study on 2/12/2019

Set 2/__/19 as public hearing date

Public notification per City and state law A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 35 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 31

Development Agreement

•Roles & responsibilities of owner associations
•Maintenance responsibilities
•Provision & use of public & private open spaces
•Regional Benefit – Opportunity for dedication & 
improvement of land for a public park
•Payment of Park mitigation fees
• Festival Area for community events

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 36 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 32

 3/26/18 Binding Site Plan submitted

4/13/18 Application Deemed Complete

Council Study Session on Draft Development 
Agreement Items

DA Public Hearing by City Council and Approval

SEPA Threshold Issuance (impacts reviewed & 
mitigated)

Public Hearing by Hearing Examiner on BSP

Status The Farm at Mill Creek

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 37 of 148



EGUV & The Farm 33

Development Agreement

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (... Page 38 of 148



SITE PLAN

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (...
Page 39 of 148



WETLAND MITIGATION

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (...
Page 40 of 148



WETLAND MITIGATION

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (...
Page 41 of 148



BUILDING D

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (...
Page 42 of 148



BUILDING E

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (...
Page 43 of 148



BUILDING F

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (...
Page 44 of 148



BUILDING F

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (...
Page 45 of 148



PARKING STRUCTURE

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (...
Page 46 of 148



BUILDING E RETAIL

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (...
Page 47 of 148



BUILDING F COMMERCIAL

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (...
Page 48 of 148



BUILDING F LIVE WORK ALLEY

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #B

.

The Farm
 at M

ill C
reek - Process for C

onsideration and Proposed Vision (...
Page 49 of 148



CITY or /-i:_.__,/,_
Agenda Item #L

W A S H I N G T O N Meeting Date: February 19, 2019

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington

AGENDA ITEM: 2019 AWC CENTER FOR QUALITY COMMUNITIES
SCHOLARSHIP NOMINATION

PROPOSED MOTION:

Motion to select to represent the City 01‘Mill Creek in the statewide AWC
Center for Quality Communities Scholarship selection process. The nominee will receive a $500
local monetary award for being selected as the City of Mill Creek 2019 nominee.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:

The AWC Center for Quality Communities promotes municipal leadership development and
civic engagement. The Center’s animal scholarship supports senior high school students who are
actively engaged with their community and/or city government and want to pursue post-
secondary education.

Scholarship Structure: Six $1,000 scholarships will be awarded to high school students
statewide who plan to pursue a p0st—secondarydegree in fall 2019.

Student Applicant Eligibility:

0 Involved (or have been involved) with a city government and/or signi?cant school
leadership activity;

9 Eligible to graduate from high school, complete home school or receive a GED in
Spring/Summer 2019;

- Live within the City limits o1‘Mill Creek;
0 Plan to continue education in the 2019-2020 academic year at an accredited college,

community college or trade school on a half-time or more basis; and
I Complete and submit the Quality Communities scholarship application, a personal essay

and one letter of recommendation by Friday, February 1, 2019.

The City of Mill Creek has participated in this scholarship opportunity since 2015. The City’s
nominees for 2015 and 2017 were each awarded one of the six statewide scholarships.

The application was made available online and promoted through local news media and the
City’s social media channels. The application information was also distributed to Archbishop
Murphy High School, Jackson I-lighSchool and to the Mill Creek Youth Advisory Board
members.

AGENDA ITEM #C.

AWC Center for Quality Communities Scholarship Nominee Selection (City C... Page 50 of 148



City CouncilAgenda Summary
Page 2

From this outreach, 13 quali?ed applications were received for consideration. The selection
committee consists of Mill Creek Councilmembers Mike Todd and John Steckler.

CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:

Provide a $500 local award to the successful nominee as recommended by the committee and
approved by the Council. Funds to be paid from Council Contingency Fund.

ATTACHMENTS:

0 N/A

AGENDA ITEM #C.

AWC Center for Quality Communities Scholarship Nominee Selection (City C... Page 51 of 148



—‘v. EC'",°F//i'=/'“ Agenda Item #

Meeting Date: February 19, 2019
WASHINGTON

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington

AGENDA ITEM: ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MILL CREEK MUNICIPAL
CODE RELATED TO CODE ENFORCEMENT

PROPOSED MOTION:

Motion to adopt Ordinance 2019-
related to Code Enforcement.

amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code (MCMC)

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:

When the responsibility for Land Use Code Enforcement transitioned from the Police
Department to the Development Services Department, staff reviewed the Mill Creek Municipal
Code (MCMC) and determined that it should be modi?ed to clarify and better communicate the
intent of the Code and make it easier to enforce. The amendments are described in detail in the
staff report, which is attached to Planning Commission Resolution 2018-165 (Attachment A,
Exhibit A to Council Ordinance). The amendments will apply citywide.

The proposed amendments were presented to the Planning Commission in a Work Session on
October 18, 2018 (Attachment B). The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on the
proposed amendments on November 15, 2018 (Attachment C). Following the public hearing the
Planning Commission adopted Planning Commission Resolution 2018-165, recommending
approval of the proposed amendments to the City Council.

CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt the attached ordinance amending the MCMC related to Code Enforcement.

ATTACHMENTS:

0 Attachment A: Proposed Ordinance Adopting Proposed Amendments including Exhibit
A—Pla11ningCommission Resolution ‘

0 Attachment B: Planning Commission Minutes of October 18, 2018
0 Attachme ' 1 7 Commission Minutes November 15, 2018

//I
Respect?illy Sub
/

/

Interim City Manager

AGENDA ITEM #D.

Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 52 of 148



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MILL CREEK, WASHINGTON,
AMENDING THE MILL CREEK MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 14.01.030
DEFINITIONS, SECTION 17.22.080 VEHICLE PARKING, AND SECTION
17.24.030 MAINTENANCE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, RCW 36.70A.040 and 36.70A.120 require the City of Mill Creek (“City”) to

adopt development regulations, including zoning regulations, to implement the City's

ComprehensivePlan; and

WHEREAS, the amendments are intended to clarify and better communicate the intent of

the Code and improve staff’s ability to enforce the Code; and

WHEREAS, on October23, 2018, theCity issueda SEPA threshold Determination of Non-

Signi?cance for the proposed amendments to the Development Code; and

WHEREAS, on November 7, 2018, the comment period for the Determination of Non-

Signi?cance expired and no comments were received;and

WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing before the Planning Commission on the proposed

amendments was duly posted at City Hall on November 6, 2018, pursuant to MCMC Section

14.07.030(A); and

WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing before the Planning Commission on the proposed

amendments was duly advertised in the Everett Herald on November 8, 2018, pursuant to MCMC

Section l4.07.030(A); and

WHEREAS, on October 23, 2018, the proposed amendments were submitted to the

Washington State Department of Commerce for review, as required by RCW 36.70A.106; and

WHEREAS, on November 15, 2018, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on

the proposed amendments to the development code; and

{EFM1862l26.DOCX;l/05739.00Cl002/}

AGENDA ITEM #D.

Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 53 of 148



WHEREAS, all persons desiring to comment on the proposed amendments were given a

full and complete opportunity to be heard; and

WHEREAS, following the public hearing, the Planning Commission adopted Resolution

2018-165recommending approval of the proposed amendments to the City Council; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has the authority to amend provisions of the Mill Creek

MunicipalCode; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determinedthat the proposed amendments to the Mill

Creek Municipal Code set forth in Exhibit A are in the best interests of the public health, safety

and generalwelfare;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MILL CREEK,
WASHINGTON, ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Findings. Upon considerationof and based on the foregoing provisions of this
Ordinance, the City Council ?nds that the amendmentsset forth in Exhibit A are: (a) consistent
with state law and the Mill Creek ComprehensivePlan; (b) substantially related to the public
health, safety, and welfare; and (c) consistent with the best interest of the citizens, residentsand
property owners of the City.

Section 2. Based on the foregoing, Titles 14 and 17 of the Mill Creek MunicipalCode are
hereby amended to read as set forth in Exhibit A to this Ordinance as of the effective date of this
Ordinance.

’

Section 3. The City Clerk is directed to take steps as required to implementand effectuate
the terms of this Ordinance and incorporatethe foregoing changes into the Mill Creek Municipal
Code. The Clerk is authorizedto correct scrivener's errors, internalreferences, and the like.

Section 4. If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance should be held to be
invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or
unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionally of any other section, sentence,
clause, or phrase of this ordinance.

Section 5. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect ?ve days after publicationof a
summary hereof consisting of the title of this Ordinance, in accordance with RCW 35A.l3.200.

Adopted this day of , 2019, by a vote of for,
against, and abstaining. '

{EFMl 862l26.DOCX;l/05739.000002/ }

AGENDA ITEM #D.

Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 54 of 148



APPROVED:

MAYOR PAMELA PRUITT

ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:

GINA PFISTER, CITY CLERK

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY
SCOTT M. MISSALL, CITY ATTORNEY

FILED WITH THE CITY CLERK:

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL:

PUBLISHED:

EFFECTIVE DATE:

ORDINANCE NO.:

Attachments: EXHIBIT A — Planning Commission Resolution 2018-165

g:\executive\wp\ordinanccs\20I9\code enforcementamendments.doc

{EFM I862I26.DOCX;I/OS739.000002/}

AGENDA ITEM #D.

Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 55 of 148



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 2018-165

A RESOLUTIONOF THE CITY OF MILLCREEK )
PLANNINGCOMMISSION,RECOMMENDING )
APPROVAL TO THEMILLCREEKCITY COUNCIL ) t

OFAMENDMENTSTO THE MILLCREEK ) FINDINGS,
MUNICIPALCODE SECTION 14.01.030 ) REASONS AND
DEFINITIONS,SECTIONl7.22.080VEHICLE ) RECOMMENDATIONS
PARKING,ANDSECTION l7.24.030 . )

I

MAINTENANCE. )
)

WHEREAS,the PlanningCommissionis chargedwith the responsibilityfor conducting

publichearingson proposed regulationsconcerningthe use of land in the City of Mill Creek or

amendmentsto existing regulations and for making recommendationsto the City Council for

appropriateactionon such proposedland use regulations,as set forth in RCW chapter35A.63and

MillCreekMunicipalCode Chapters4.10 and 14.03;and

WHEREAS,RCW 36.70A.O40and36.70A.120,portionsof the Growth ManagementAct,

requiretheCity to adoptdevelopmentregulations,includingzoningregulations, to implementthe

City's ComprehensivePlan; and

WHEREAS,the intent of the amendmentsis to clarify and bettercommunicatethe intent

of theCodeand improvestaffs ability to enforcethe Code;and

WHEREAS,on October23, 2018, theCity issueda SEPA thresholdDeterminationof Non-

Signi?cancefor the proposed amendmentsto the DevelopmentCode; and

WHEREAS,on November 7, 2018, the commentperiod for the Determination of Non-

Signi?canceexpired. No comments were received;and

AGENDA ITEM #D.

Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 56 of 148



WHEREAS,noticeof a publichearingbeforethe PlanningCommissionon the proposed

amendmentswas duly posted at City Hall on November6, 2018, pursuant to MCMC Section

l4.07.030(A); and

WHEREAS,noticeof thepublichearingbeforethePlanningCommissionon the proposed

amendmentswas duly advertisedin the Everett Heraldon November8, 2018, in accordancewith

MCMC 14.07.030;and

WHEREAS,on October23, 2018, theproposedamendmentswere submittedto the

WashingtonState Departmentof Commercefor review, as requiredby RCW 36.70A.l06; and

WHEREAS,a staff report to the PlarmingCommissionwas preparedto present, analyze,

and recommendto the PlanningCommission adoptionof the proposed amendmentstothe

developmentcode; and

WI-IEREAS,'onNovember ‘I5, 2018, the PlarmingCommissionheld a public hearing on

the proposedamendmentsto the developmentcode;and

WHEREAS, the Plamting Commission considered the staff report, attached hereto as

Exhibit A and incorporatedin full by this reference,and the proposedamendmentsto the MCMC

and foundthat the proposedamendmentsare consistentwith the City’sComprehensivePlan, the

Growth ManagementAct, MCMC Chapter 17.38, andother applicable state and federal law,

includingthe ComprehensivePlan, and willbene?t the publichealth,safety, and welfare.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSIONOF
THE CITYOF MILL CREEKAS FOLLOWS:

Section 1: The PlanningCommission?nds the proposed amendmentsas describedwithin
the Planning Commission sta?' report, attachedand incorporatedin full by this reference as
Exhibit A, are consistentwith and implementthe policiesof the ComprehensivePlan, the Growth
Management Act, and other applicable state and federal law, and further ?nds that the proposed
Amendmentsmake appropriate provisions for and further the public health, safety and general
welfare.

Section2: The Planning Commission adopts the ?ndings, conclusions, and
recommendationscontainedin the staff report, attachedas Exhibit A, except as may be expressly
modi?edhereinby Exhibit B, attachedand incorporatedin full by this reference.

AGENDA ITEM #D.

Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 57 of 148



Section 3: The Planning Commission therefore recommends to the City Council adoption
of the proposed Amendments as set Forthin Exhibit A and as may be further modi?ed by speci?c
actionofthe Planning Commission as set forth in Exhibit B.

Passed in open meeting this 15"‘day of November 2018, by a vote of :2 for,
0 against and (2 abstaining.

CITY OF MILL CREEK PLANNING COMMISSION

/9%»EA
STAN EISNER,PLANNING COMMISSIONCHAIR

TOM/ROGERS,PLANNING COMMISSION SECRETARY

ATTACHMENT: ExhibitA — Staff Report
Exhibit B — Planning CommissionMotion

G:\I’L/tNNlNG\wp\Rcsolulinns\20l8\Codcl‘-.nt'<trccmcntAmcmtmcnts.docx

AGENDA ITEM #D.

Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 58 of 148



EXHIBIT A
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

STAFF REPORT
TO THE MILL CREEK PLANNING COMMISSION

PART I - SUMMARY INFORMATION

PUBLIC I-IEARING: November 15, 2018

REQUESTEDACTION: Review of Mill Creek Municipal Code Amendmentsthat have been
' proposed to clarify and better communicate the intent of the Code

with regard to Code Enforcement and improve staff’s ability to
enforce the Code. The proposed regulations will apply citywide.

SITE LOCATION: City of Mill Creek

PROPONENT: City of Mill Creek
15728Main Street
Mill Creek, Washington 98012

COMPREHENSIVE
PLAN DESIGNATION: Not applicable.

ZONING DISTRICT: Not applicable.

PART II - STATUTORY REQQUIREMENTS

SEPA COMPLIANCE:

The proposed amendmentsto the MCMC are subject to the provisions of the State
EnvironmentalPolicy Act (SEPA). The City’s SEPA1Of?cial has determined that the proposed
code amendments will not have a probable signi?cant adverse impact on the environment. Thus,
an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) was not required.

On October 23, 2018, a Determination of Non-significance (DNS) was issued on the proposed
code amendments. The comment period ended on November 7, 2018. No comments were
received.

PUBLIC NOTICE:

Pursuant to Section 14.07.030 Mill Creek Municipal Code (MCMC), a notice of the public
hearing was posted at Mill Creek City Hall on November 6, 2018, and published in the Everett
Herald on November 8, 2018. All legal requirementsfor public notice have been satis?ed.

'

{EFM I815 l42.DOCX; l/05739.000002/} 1

AGENDA ITEM #D.

Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 59 of 148



PART III - DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS
TO THE MILL CREEK MUNICIPAL CODE

ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT:

The provisions governing amendments to the text ofthe Development Code are found in Section
1738.020, MCMC. This section states that text amendments may be initiated by the City
Council, the Planning Commission, or City staff. The proposed amendments listed below have
been initiated by City staff.

MILL CREEK MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS RELATED TO CODE
ENFORCEMENT

In 2017 the responsibility for land use code enforcement transitioned from the Police Department
to the Development Services Department. Upon taking responsibility for code enforcement,
Development Services staff reviewed the Mill Creek Municipal Code (MCMC) and determined
that it could be modified to clarify and better communicate the intent of the Code and improve
staffs ability to enforce the Code. Following are several minor amendments that staffis proposing:

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED ZONING TEXT AMENDMENTS:

.‘o.I";t:lI§fey-

0 Proposed new text is shown with a bold and underline. Deleted text is shown in

iobaie.A§nenag;eut.#:1 éfMcMe .S'e§t,ion .17.22.080.BVehicle Pa1=king_

Issue: The MCMC prohibits recreationalvehicles, boats, trailers, and inoperable vehicles
from being stored in the front yard including the driveway. There have been some
challenges enforcing the Code with regard to inoperable vehicles. The current definition of
inoperable vehicle includes cars with invalid licensing. This means that an operable car in
good repair would be considered inoperable simply because it does not have current tabs.
There are a variety of reasons why the owner may not currently be using the vehicle and
may have chosen not to renew the tabs, including the following recent examples:

0 Someone deployed in the armed forces
0 Grandparent saving the vehicle for a grandchild Owner works internationally or is

gone for extended periods

Staff Recommendation: The intent ofthe MCMC is to not allowjunk vehicles to be
stored in the front yard/driveway. This can be addressed by deleting the term “inoperable
vehicle" from the pertinent code section and replacing it with “junk vehicle.” A de?nition
ofjunk vehicle will need be added to MCMC l4.0l — see Code Amendment #4 below.

{EFMI815|42.DOCX;l/05739000002!) 2

AGENDA ITEM #D.

Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 60 of 148



Issue: The MCMC also prohibits recreational vehicles and boats from being stored in the
front yard. However, owners of an RV or boat that is generally stored off site in
accordance with the Code periodically may want to temporarily park their RV or boat at
their house for purposes of cleaning and/or loading.

Staff Recommendation: Add an exception to allow temporary parking of RVs and boats
for purposes of loading and/or cleaning for a period not to exceed 72 hours.

Proposed Text Amendments:
17.22.080.B Vehicle parking.

B. No recreation vehicle, boat, trailer, or junk vehicle shall be parked
or stored in any front yard or front yard setback area including the driveway, except that
recreation vehicles and boats may be temporarily parked in the front yard setback
area for purposes of cleaning and/or loading for a period not to exceed 72 hours. Any
vehicles stored in a side yard shall be fully screened from view from any public right-of-
way; see MCMC l7.22.070.

{G6E1.é:Amen.dment:#2+"NK3MC3S6éti0!1L'Z.22}080I.C«Méhicle-Warl?ngs- — .. . ...‘L

Issue: The MCMC currently prohibits Commercial Vehicles in excess of 6,000 pounds
total gross weight from being parked on any lot in a residential zone. The 6,000 pound
distinction is unrealistic since a large truck meets this definition (e.g., a Ford F350 weighs
8,000 pounds).

Staff Recommendation: Remove the 6,000 pound qualifier and add a de?nition of
Commercial Vehicle to the MCMC 14.01 definition section — see Amendment #4 below.

Issue: The MCMC does not currently prohibit construction equipment from being parked
on a residential lot.

Staff Recommendation: Add motorized construction equipment to the list of Commercial
Vehicles that cannot be parked on a residential lot, with the exception of equipment
currently being used in conjunction with an approved construction project.

Proposed Text Amendments:

l7.22.080.C Vehicle parking.
C. Commercial Vehicles. No commercialvehicles or combination of commercial vehicle

and trailer
.

or any gpe of motorized construction
eguipment shall be parked on any lot in a residential zone except for motorized
construction eguipment currently being used in conjunction with an approved
construction project. (Ord. 2010-717 § 2 (Exh. B); Ord. 2005-609 § 2)

{EFMl8l5l42.DOC.‘(,l/03739 000002/: 3

AGENDA ITEM #D.

Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 61 of 148



'd_°eAmendment?#3‘-.—:jl\{[GMG5See_tion.—1'7/.24-».()30_.M:1inten‘anee
,

___,_:-._ __

Issue: The MCMC currently requires all buildings and structures to be maintained in
original or better than original condition. This is an unrealistic expectation and is
problematic to enforce.

Staff Recommendation: The intent ofthe Code is to ensure that all buildings and
structures be maintained in good repair so staff proposes to change the Code to reflect that.

Proposed Text Amendments:

17.24.030 Maintenance.

A. All buildings and other structures shall be maintained by the property owner in good
repair with respect to exterior appearance and
landscaping.

B. All landscaped and open space areas and LID landscapefeatures on or adjacent to the
property, excluding public sidewalks and public rights-of-waysubject to Chapter M
MCMC, shall be maintained by the property owner, and shall be:

1. Kept free of litter, debris, invasive vegetation/weeds and obstructions.
2. Maintained in a clean.neat and orderly fashion.
3. Maintained consistent with design review board and other approved landscape

plans ifapplicable.
4. Kept free 0f junk vehicles.
5. Maintained so that all deposited materials in garbage and recycle containers are

wholly containedwithin the structure as required by MCMC l7.22.070. No litter or
recyclable material shall be allowed to accumulate outside said containers. Containers shall
be kept clean, free of odors and pests, shall not constitute a public nuisance and shall be
maintained to meet the conditionsof the design review board and/or other conditionsof
approval.

-Codeguneudment #4 — MGM; :1 e030— De?nitions. -. 45A-«

Issue: The MCMC does not currently contain a definition for Commercial Vehicle.

Staff Recommendation: Add the following definition for Commercial Vehicle to MCMC
14.0] of the Code, which is based on the Department of'l‘ransportation definition.

Proposed Text Amendments:

“Commercial vehicle” means any vehicle that is used or maintained for the
transportation of persons for hire or compensation, or for pro?t. or is designed, used,
or maintained primarilv for the transportation of property, goods and commodities‘,
and

{EFMl8l5l42 DOCX,l/0573‘).00()002/} 4

AGENDA ITEM #D.

Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 62 of 148



1. Is a motorvehicle having a declared gross weight of ten thousand pounds or
more,‘ 0]‘ «

2. Is a motor vehicle having three or more axles.

Issue: The MCMC currently uses the term “inoperable vehicle” and as mentioned in Code
Amendment #1 above, staff is proposing to replace inoperablevehicle with “junk vehicle.”

Staff Recommendation: Delete definition of “Inoperable Vehicle” in its entirety and
replace with a new definition for Junk Vehicle, based on the RCW'de?nition.

Proposed Text Amendments:

“Junk Vehicle” means a vehicle certified under RCW 46.55.230 as meeting at least
three of the following reguirements:

{a} is three years old or older;
1b) is extensively damaged, such damage including but not limited to anyof the
following: a broken window or windshield, or missing doors, hoods, wheels,
tires, motor, or transmission’,
(c) is apparently inoperable;
(d) has an approximate fair market value egual only to the approximate value
of the scrap in it.

PART IV — FINDINGS, CONCLUSIONS,AND RECOMMENDATION

The proposedamendmentsto the City’sMunicipalCode have beenpreparedto be consistentwith
. the Growth Management Act, applicablestate and federal regulations,the City’s Comprehensive
Plan, and the City’sdevelopmentcode amendmentprocess contained in Chapter 17.38. As
re?ected below, the proposedamendmentshave been reviewed for consistencywith these
requirementsand are found to be consistentwith applicablelocal,state and federal regulations.

FINDINGS ANDCONCLUSIONS:

1. In accordancewith the Growth Management Act (GMA), specifically RCW 36.70A.040 and
36.70A.120, the City is required to adopt development regulations, including development
regulations, to implement the City's Comprehensive Plan.

In accordance with the Mill Creek Municipal Code (MCMC) Chapter 17.38, the City has the
authority to initiate amendments to the code.

A review of the MCMC revealed that certain housekeeping amendments would clarify the
Code with respect to Code Enforcement provisions and improve staff’s ability to enforce the
Code.

In accordance to MCMC Chapter 18.04, the proposed code amendments are subject to the
provisions of the State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA). The City’s SEPA Official has

{EFMI8l5 l42.DOCX; l/05739.000002/ } 5

AGENDA ITEM #D.

Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 63 of 148



determined that the proposed code amendments will not have a probable signi?cant adverse
impact on the environment. Therefore, an EnvironmentalImpact Statement (EIS) was not
required.

5. On October 23, 2018, a Determination of Non-signi?cance (DNS) was issuedon the
proposed code amendments. The comment period ended November 9, 2018. No comments
were received and the DNS is deemed ?nal.

6. Pursuant toSection 14.07.030 Mill Creek MunicipalCode (MCMC), notice of public hearing
was posted at Mill Creek City Hall on November 6, 2018, and published in the Everett
Herald on November 8, 2018. All legal requirementsfor public notice have been satis?ed.

7. On October 23, 2018, the proposed amendments were submitted to the Washington State
Department of Commerce for review, as required by RCW 36.70A.106.

8. In accordance with Chapter 35A.63 RCW and MCMC Chapters 2.04 and 14.03, the City
Council is charged with the responsibility of making decisionson amendments to the existing
Mill Creek MunicipalCode (MCMC) regulations.

9. The proposed amendments are consistentwith the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the Growth
Management Act, MCMC Chapter 17.38, and other applicable state and federal law, will
implement the Comprehensive Plan, and will bene?t the public health, safety, and welfare.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Notwithstanding citizen testimony and revisions made by the Planning Commission in response
to said testimony, staff recommends that the Mill Creek Planning Commission adopt the preceding
?ndings and conclusions and recommend to the Mill Creek City Council adoptionof the proposed
code amendments set forth herein.

G:\PLANNING\wp\CodeAmendments\20l7\Sta?‘Report Code Enforcementdocx

{EFMI8 15l42.DOCX;l/05739.000002/ } 6

AGENDA ITEM #D.

Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 64 of 148



CITY OF MILL CREEK
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES

October 18,2018
ApprovedNovember l_5,2018

I. CALL TO ORDER:

ChairEisnercalledthe meeting to order at 7:00p.m.

II. ROLL CALL:

ChairStan Eisner Staff:
Vice ChairMatthewNolan Tom Rogers, Planning& Dev. ServicesManager
CommissionerSteven Maloney ChristiAmrine,SeniorPlanner
CommissionerBrianHyatt SherrieRingstad,AssociatePlanner
CommissionerDanielMills
CommissionerJennifer Parker
CommissionerDennisTeschlog

HI. ELECTIONOF OFFICERS
%

Electionof Chair

MOTION: Commission Mills nominated Stan Eisner to serve in the positionof Chair, seconded
by Commissioner Hyatt. The motion was approved unanimously.

Electionof Vice Chair

MOTION: Chair Eisner nominated Matthew Nolan to serve in the position of Vice Chair,
secondedby Commissioner Mills. The motion was approved unanimously.

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

PlanningCommissionMeeting of January 19,2017

MOTION: Vice Chair Nolan moved, seconded by Commissioner Tesehlog, to approve the
January 19,2017 minutes as presented. The motion was approved unanimously.

IV. WORK SESSION

Proposed Amendmentsto the Mill CreekMunicipalCode .
AssociatePlannerRingstad noted that the proposed amendmentsbeing consideredby the
PlanningCommissionthis evening are relatedto CodeEnforcement. She explainedthat the
responsibilityfor enforcingthe landuse code was transferredfrom the Community ‘Services
Omcer in the PoliceDepartmentto the DevelopmentServicesDepartment. Since that time
severalissueshave come up relating to portionsof the MCMCthat were not clear or hard to
enforce. She noted that the presentationincludesa discussionof the issue, the potential
solution,followed by the proposedCode language.

AGENDA ITEM #D.

Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 65 of 148



Planning Commission Minutes
October 18, 2018
Page 2

Issue #1
Ms. Ringstad noted that the MCMC prohibits inoperablevehicles from being stored in the
front yard. The issue is created by the de?nition of inoperable vehicle, which includes
vehicles without current license tabs. She stated that staff believes the intent of the Code is
to prohibitjunk vehicles and is proposing to replace the term inoperable vehicle withjunk
vehicle. This would also includeadding a de?nition ofjunk vehicle.

Issue #2
Associate Planner Ringstad noted that the MCMC prohibits RVs and boats from being stored
in a front yard. The Code does not allow for temporary parking for purposes of cleaning and
loading. Staff is proposing adding an exception to the code to allow for temporary parking
for RVs and boats for a period not to exceed 72 hours.

Proposed Code Language

17.22.080.BVehicle parking.

B. No recreation vehicle, boat, trailer, or vehicle shall be parked or stored in
any front ard or front ard setback area includingthe driveway. ‘

t

. _ . i C. T

-C I

; . Any vehilestoredinaide
yard shall be fully screened from view from any public right-of-way; see MCMC 17.22.070.

l4.0l.030 —- De?nitions

Development Services Manager Rogers noted that the de?nition was taken from the RCWS.

Issue #3
Ms. Ringstad noted that the MCMC currently prohibits Commercial Vehicles in excess of
6,000 pounds total gross weight from being parked on any lot in a residential zone.’ She
stated that the 6,000 pound distinction is unrealisticsince a large truck meets this de?nition.
Staffis recommending removing the 6,000 pound quali?er and adding a de?nition for
Commercial Vehicle.

Issue #4
The MCMC does not currently speci?cally prohibit construction equipment from being
parked on a residential lot. Language is proposed that would add motorized construction
equipment to the list of Commercial Vehicles that cannot be parked on a residential lot, with
the exception of equipment being used in conjunction with an approved construction project.

AGENDA ITEM #D.

Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 66 of 148



PlanningCommissionMinutes
October l8, 2018
Page 3

Proposed Code Language

l7.22.080.C Vehicle parking.
C. CommercialVehicles. No commercialvehicles]er-combination of vehicle and trailer,-

shall be arked onH1‘ " *‘,m -’_ . _ ._ ..
a 1:

any lot In a residntialzone

l4.0l.O30 — De?nitions

Issue #5
AssociatePlanner Ringstad stated that the MCMC currently requires all buildings and
structures to be maintained in original or better than original condition. This is an unrealistic
expectationas well as being problematic to enforce. She said that the intent of the Code is to

ensure that all buildings and structures are maintained in good repair.

Proposed Code Language

l7.24.030 Maintenance.
A. All buildings and other structures shall be maintainedE by the property owner in
with respect to exterior appearance and landscaping.
B. All landscaped and open space areas and LID landscape features on or adjacent to the property,
excludingpublic sidewalks and public rights-of-waysubject to Chapter 1_2_.0_6MCMC, shall be
maintainedby the property owner, and shall be:
l. Kept free of litter, debris, invasive vegetation/weedsand obstructions.
2. Maintainedin a clean, neat and orderly fashion.
3. Maintainedconsistent with design review board and other approved landscape plans if
applicable.
4. Kept free of inoperable vehicles.
5. Maintained so that all deposited materials in garbage and recycle containers are wholly
containedwithin the structure as required by MCMC l7.22.070. No litter or recyclable
material shall be allowed to accumulateoutside said containers. Containers shall be kept
clean, free of odors and pests, shall not constitute a public nuisance and shall be maintained
to meet the conditions of the design review board and/or other conditions of approval.

Commissioner Teschlog noted that the maintenancesection of the Code still contains the
term inoperable vehicle in item B.4 and suggested that it also be replaced with the term junk
vehicle similar to the previous modi?cation discussed.

AGENDA ITEM #D.

Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 67 of 148



PlanningCommissionMinutes
October 18,2018
Page 4

IX. FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER
Development Services Manager Tom Rogers noted that an economic development study is
currently proposed in the budget for the subarea along Mill Creek Boulevard from 164"‘Street to
Main Street. This area is approachinga time when it may be redeveloped. I-lenoted that there is a
lot of room to work with in the right—ol'-wayand there are both challenges and opportunities. If
the Council funds the study, the Commission would be involved in creating the subarea plan.
Several Commissioners were very supportive of the idea of doing a subarea plan and asked ifit
would be appropriate to make a recommendationto Council.

MOTION: Vice Chair Nolan moved that the Planning Commission make a recommendation to
the City Council to fund an economic development study ofthe subarea south of the
Town Center along Mill Creek Boulevard to 164th Street SE for the potential to
enhance the City's tax base, make the best and highest use of the property, and
provide more of a gathering spot. The motion was seconded by Chair Eisner and
passed unanimously.

Mr. Rogers added that another item the Commission will be working on is revisions to the
Code regarding Small Cell wireless facilities. The FCC recently adopted a new rule that goes
into effect in January. The Small Cells aren’t currently addressed in the Code and the City
needs to incorporate some aestheticstandards, becausewe won’t be able to prohibit small
cell facilities i11residential areas.

X. ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Chair Eisner adjourned the meeting with the consensus of the Commission at
7:50 p.m.

Submitted by:

q§wuu;.._a6gW7’ytz~J
SherrieRingstad, Associate Planner

AGENDA ITEM #D.

Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 68 of 148



A

CITY OF MILL CREEK
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES

November 15, 2018
ApprovedJanuary 17,2019

I. CALLTO ORDER:

ChairEisnercalledthe meetingto orderat 7:02p.m.

II. OLL CALL:

ChairStanEisner Staff:
Vice ChairMatthewNolan Tom Rogers,Planning& Dev. Services Manager
CommissionerSteven Maloney SherrieRingstad,AssociatePlanner
CommissionerBrianHyatt (absent)
CommissionerDaniel Mills
CommissionerJenniferParker (absent)
CommissionerDennisTeschlog (absent)

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

PlanningCommissionMeeting of OctoberI8, 2018

MOTION:Vice Chair Nolan moved, seconded by Commissioner Maloney, to approve the
October 18,2018 minutes as presented. The motion was approved unanimously.

IV. PUBLICHEARING

PropgsedAmendmentsto the Mill CreekMunicipalCode (MCMC)
AssociatePlannerRingstadnotedthat the proposedamendmentsbeing consideredby the
PlanningCommissionthisevening are relatedto Code Enforcement. She explainedthat the
responsibilityfor enforcing the land use codewas transferredfrom the Community Services
Of?cer inthe PoliceDepartmentto the DevelopmentServicesDepartment. Since that time
severalissueshavecome up relating to portionsof the MCMC thatwere not clearor hardto
enforce. She officially enteredintothe recordPlanningCommissionResolution2018-165
withthe attachedstaff report, the staff PowerPointandany publictestimonyreceived.
Ms.Ringstadnotedthat the City Attorney hasreviewedandapprovedthe proposed
amendments. The Commission receiveda presentationand thoroughly discussed the
proposedamendmentsin study session last monthand the Commission’ssuggestions have
been incorporatedintothe Planning Commission’srecommendationto the City Council. She
askedif the Commissionwouldlike to hearthe staff presentationagain and the Commission
declined.

ChairEisneropenedthe publichearingat 7:05p.m. No publicwas present, so Chair Eisner
closedthe publictestimony portionof the hearingand openedthe ?oor for Commission
deliberationandlora motion.

MOTION: Commissioner Mills moved, seconded by Commissioner Maloney, to adopt Resolution
2018-165recommending approval to the City Council of the proposed Code

AGENDA ITEM #D.

Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 69 of 148



PlanningCommission Minutes
November 15, 2018
Page 2

Enforcement amendments to the Mill Creek Municipal Code as contained in the staff
report. The motion was approved unanimously.

V. WORK SESSION
Development Services Manager Tom Rogers mentioned that Code Amendments related to 5G
WirelessFacilities will be on the Commission’swork program in the coming months. I-le
explained that staffrecently viewed a PowerPoint on small cell wireless facilities prepared by
Ogden, Murphy Wallace, the City’s attorney’s oftice. Elana Zana is the lead attorney on this issue
and staffhas been in communicationwith her. Mr. Rogers stated that the presentation contains an
introductionto the topic that he believes will be benelicial for the Commission.

Following the presentation, the Commission brielly discussed the topic ofsmall cell code
amendments. Development Services Manager Rogers stated that there are a lot of issues to

consider from the procedural process, to fees, to the aesthetic issues. He stated that we will need
advice from the attorney, and our optionswill be limited by the FCC regulations.

VI. FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER
Associate Planner Ringstad asked the Commissionersto send her confirmation that they have
completed the Short Course on Local Planning. She stated that she needs to track the training so
she can give the Commissioners a reminder in four years when it is time to take a refresher.
Ms. Ringstadsaid that she would send a reminder email with a link to the training just in case

anyone still needs to take the training.

VII. ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Chair Eisner adjourned the meeting with the consensus of the Commission at

8:05 p.m.

Submitted by:

SherrieRingstad, Associate.’Planntlsrj

AGENDA ITEM #D.

Ordinance Amending the Mill Creek Municipal Code Related to Code Enforce... Page 70 of 148



Proposed Code Amendments
Relating to Code Enforcement

February 19, 2019

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #D

.

O
rdinance Am

ending the M
ill C

reek M
unicipal C

ode R
elated to C

ode Enforce...
Page 71 of 148



Proposed Code Amendments Relating to Code Enforcement 2

• Responsibility for Code Enforcement 
assigned to Development Services.

• Certain aspects of the existing Code 
can be difficult to enforce.

• Amendments are proposed to clarify 
and make it easier to enforce.

• City Attorney has reviewed the 
proposed amendments.

Background

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #D

.

O
rdinance Am

ending the M
ill C

reek M
unicipal C

ode R
elated to C

ode Enforce...
Page 72 of 148



Proposed Code Amendments Relating to Code Enforcement 3

• Reviewed in Study Session.

• Public Hearing – November 15, 2018.

• Adopted Resolution 2018-165 
recommending approval of the 
proposed amendments to the City 
Council.

Planning Commission Review

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #D

.

O
rdinance Am

ending the M
ill C

reek M
unicipal C

ode R
elated to C

ode Enforce...
Page 73 of 148



Proposed Code Amendments Relating to Code Enforcement 4

• The MCMC currently prohibits 
inoperable vehicles from being 
stored in a driveway.

• The MCMC currently defines an 
inoperable vehicle as a vehicle that 
because of disrepair or lack of 
licensing is incapable or prevented 
by law from being propelled on a 
public highway.

Issue #1

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #D

.

O
rdinance Am

ending the M
ill C

reek M
unicipal C

ode R
elated to C

ode Enforce...
Page 74 of 148



Proposed Code Amendments Relating to Code Enforcement 5

• Replacing the term inoperable 
vehicle in 17.22.080.B with junk 
vehicle and providing definition of 
junk vehicle.

• Add exception to allow temporary 
parking of RVs and boats for 
purposes of loading and/or cleaning 
for a period of 72 hours.

Proposed Amendment #1

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #D

.

O
rdinance Am

ending the M
ill C

reek M
unicipal C

ode R
elated to C

ode Enforce...
Page 75 of 148



Proposed Code Amendments Relating to Code Enforcement 6

17.22.080.B No recreation vehicle, 
boat, trailer, or inoperable junk vehicle 
shall be parked or stored in any front 
yard or front yard setback area 
including the driveway.  Exception:  
Recreational vehicles and boats may 
be temporarily parked in the front 
yard setback area for purposes of 
cleaning and/or loading for a period 
not to exceed 72 hours…

Proposed Code Language #1

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #D

.

O
rdinance Am

ending the M
ill C

reek M
unicipal C

ode R
elated to C

ode Enforce...
Page 76 of 148



Proposed Code Amendments Relating to Code Enforcement 7

“Junk Vehicle” means a vehicle certified 
under RCW 46.55.230 as meeting at least 
three of the following requirements:

• Is three years old or older;

• Is extensively damaged, such damage including 
but not limited to any of the following:  a 
broken window or windshield, or missing 
wheels, tires, motor, or transmission;

• Is apparently inoperable;

• Has an approximate fair market value equal 
only to the approximate value of the scrap in it.

Proposed Code Language #4

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #D

.

O
rdinance Am

ending the M
ill C

reek M
unicipal C

ode R
elated to C

ode Enforce...
Page 77 of 148



Proposed Code Amendments Relating to Code Enforcement 8

• The MCMC prohibits Commercial 
Vehicles in excess of 6,000 pounds 
from being parked on a residential 
lot in a residential zone.

• The 6,000 pound limit is unrealistic.

Issue #2

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #D

.

O
rdinance Am

ending the M
ill C

reek M
unicipal C

ode R
elated to C

ode Enforce...
Page 78 of 148



Proposed Code Amendments Relating to Code Enforcement 9

• Remove the 6,000 pound qualifier 
and add a definition of Commercial 
Vehicle.

• Change 6,000 pounds in Home 
Occupation regulations to 10,000.

• Add a provision prohibiting 
motorized construction equipment 
from being stored on a residential 
lot.

Proposed Amendment #2

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #D

.

O
rdinance Am

ending the M
ill C

reek M
unicipal C

ode R
elated to C

ode Enforce...
Page 79 of 148



Proposed Code Amendments Relating to Code Enforcement 10

17.22.080.C Commercial Vehicles:  No 
commercial vehicles, or combination 
of vehicle and trailer of 6,000 pounds 
total gross weight, or any type of 
motorized construction equipment
shall be parked on any lot in  a 
residential zone except for motorized 
construction equipment being used in 
conjunction with an approved 
construction project.

Proposed Code Language #2

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #D

.

O
rdinance Am

ending the M
ill C

reek M
unicipal C

ode R
elated to C

ode Enforce...
Page 80 of 148



Proposed Code Amendments Relating to Code Enforcement 11

17.23.060.I Minimum Standards
I.     All parking shall be off-street, 
and shall be accommodated by the 
on-site garage and driveway. Gross 
vehicle weight of any one vehicle shall 
not exceed 6,000 10,000 pounds.

Proposed Code Language #2

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #D

.

O
rdinance Am

ending the M
ill C

reek M
unicipal C

ode R
elated to C

ode Enforce...
Page 81 of 148



Proposed Code Amendments Relating to Code Enforcement 12

“Commercial vehicle” means any vehicle 
that is used or maintained for the 
transportation of persons for hire 
compensation, or profit, or is designed, 
used, or maintained primarily for the 
transportation of property and 
commodities; and

• Is a motor vehicle having a declared gross 
weight in excess of ten thousand pounds; or

• Is a motor vehicle having three or more 
axles.

Proposed Code Language #4

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #D

.

O
rdinance Am

ending the M
ill C

reek M
unicipal C

ode R
elated to C

ode Enforce...
Page 82 of 148



Proposed Code Amendments Relating to Code Enforcement 13

• The MCMC currently requires all 
buildings to be maintained in 
original or better than original 
condition.

Issue #3

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #D

.

O
rdinance Am

ending the M
ill C

reek M
unicipal C

ode R
elated to C

ode Enforce...
Page 83 of 148



Proposed Code Amendments Relating to Code Enforcement 14

• The intent of the MCMC is to 
ensure that all buildings are 
maintenance in good repair.

Proposed Amendment #3

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #D

.

O
rdinance Am

ending the M
ill C

reek M
unicipal C

ode R
elated to C

ode Enforce...
Page 84 of 148



Proposed Code Amendments Relating to Code Enforcement 15

17.24.030.A  All buildings and other 
structures shall be maintained in good 
repair by the property owner in 
original or better than original 
condition with respect to exterior 
appearance and landscaping.

Proposed Code Language #3

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #D

.

O
rdinance Am

ending the M
ill C

reek M
unicipal C

ode R
elated to C

ode Enforce...
Page 85 of 148



Proposed Code Amendments Relating to Code Enforcement 16

• Adopt the draft ordinance approving the 
proposed amendments.

Staff Recommendation

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #D

.

O
rdinance Am

ending the M
ill C

reek M
unicipal C

ode R
elated to C

ode Enforce...
Page 86 of 148



‘D
CITY or /-—§=// EAgenda Item #

WASHINGTON Meeting Date: February 19,2019

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington

AGENDA ITEM: EXPLORATION PARK PROJECT — CONSTRUCTION
MANAGEMENT AND INSPECTION (PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES CONTRACT)

PROPOSED MOTION:

Motion to authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with KPFF Consulting Engineers for
construction management and inspection services for the Exploration Park Project in an amount

not to exceed $98,374.

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:

In 2006, in conjunction with the development of the North Pointe subdivision, the developer
dedicated a one-acre parcel to the City for neighborhood park land in lieu of park mitigation fees.
In 2016, the City‘s Parks and Recreation Board worked with staff and several members of the
Design Review Board to develop design concepts. The Parks and Recreation Board
recommended the Natural Play Park design concept to the Council at their regular meeting on

September 27, 2016, and the Council adopted the master plan. From 2016 through 2018, the
City contracted with consultants for geotechnical studies to prepare the design and construction
documents and to advertise the project for bid.

In December 2017, staff advertised a Request for Quali?cations(RFQs) for a constructability
and bid—abilityreview of the Exploration Park plans, speci?cations and estimate (PS&E) and
construction administration and inspection services. The City received only one RFQand it was
from KPFF Consulting Engineers. The consultant was interviewed and selected.

a) Constructability and bid—abilityreview of the design Plans, Speci?cations and
Estimate (PS&E) —Completedby KPFF in March 2018 in preparation for the lirst
time the project was advertised in April 2018.

b) Construction administration and inspection services

The project was advertised a second time in November 2018. At the December 11, 2018 Council
Meeting, Council awarded the Exploration Park construction contract to McClure and Sons, Inc.

in an amount not to exceed $1,024,944.77 to include Schedule A (Base Bid), Schedule B
(Hillside Play) and Schedule C (Play Area).

Per the adopted 2019-2024 Capital Improvement Plan, the construction phase budget is
$1,300,000. This includes a $100,000 contribution by Snohomish County for a new playground
structure. The construction phase total cost is estimated at $1,250,813.25 (Table 1).

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 87 of 148



Table 1. Construction Phase Total Cost Estimate
Item Contract Amount

1 McClure and Sons, Inc. $1,024,944.77
2 KPFF (this contract) $98,374
3 MIG/SVR (design support) $25,000
4 Contingency (10%) $102,494.48

Total $1,250,813.25

The total construction contract time is 100 working days and construction is planned to begin in
Spring 2019 when temperatures are more conducive for grading and excavation (Table 2).

Table 2. Construction Timeline
Timeline Pro jcct Milestones

December 2018 Council award construction project (McClure and Sons, Inc.)
March/April 2019 Begin construction
October /November 2019 Construction completion (open to public)

CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:

Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with KPFF Consulting Engineers for
construction management and inspection services for the Exploration Park Project in an amount
not to exceed $98,374.

ATTACHMENTS:

Contract 2019- Professional Services — KPFF Consulting Engineers

Respectfully Submit

rt S. Stowe

JxéfimCity Manager

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 88 of 148



CONTRACT 2019 — CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT AND INSPECTION
SERVICES FOR EXPLORATION PARK

CITY OF MILL CREEK
CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONALSERVICES

[ARCHITECT-ENGINEER SERVICES]

1. Parties

1.1 THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered intoby and betweenthe City of
MillCreek, 15728Main Street,Mill Creek,Washington,98012, a Washingtonmunicipal
corporation(the “City”) andKPFFConsultingEngineers,a corporationorganizedunder the
lawsof the State of Washington, locatedand doing businessat 1601 Fifth Avenue Seattle,
WA 98101 ("Consultant") (collectivelyat times referred to as "Parties"), and shall be
effective ‘uponthe authorizedsignaturesof both Parties to this Agreement ("Effective Date").

2. Recitals

2.1 The Citydesires to retain the Consultant to perform certain professional
services related to Construction Management and Inspection for Exploration Park (the
"Project").

2.2 The City solicited for professional services as required by law, including
RCW Chapter39.80.

2.3 The Consultant represents it is available and able to -providequali?ed
personneland facilitiesnecessary to accomplishtheWorkand servicescontemplatedherein
within the required time and in accordance with the City's requirements and professional
standards.

In considerationof the mutual bene?ts and promisesof this Agreement, the Parties enter
into thisAgreement on the terms and conditionsset forthherein.

3. Scope of Work

3.1 The City hereby retains the Consultant upon the terms and conditions
containedhereinto perform certainworkand serviceson the Project. The workand services
for the Project to be performed by the Consultant are set forth in the Scope of Work,
Exhibit A, attachedhereto and incorporatedhereinby this reference (the "Work").

3.2 The City has relied upon the quali?cations of the Consultant in entering
into this Agreement. By execution of the Agreement, Consultant represents it possesses the
ability, skill,and resources necessary to perform the Work and is familiarwith all applicable
current laws, rules, and regulationsthat reasonablyrelate to the Work.

3.3 It shall be the responsibilityof the Consultant to gather and become
familiar with all site information, including existing improvements, before starting and

Page 1 of 15
726492.6I0l44S5.0006$

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 89 of 148



726492.6l0l4455.00065

duringcompletionof the Work. The City may make availableto the Consultantcopiesof as-
built plans, drawings, survey notes, studies, soil reports, maintenanceand performance
records,and other relevant data, andproperty descriptionsof variousCity facilitiesrelated to
the Project, if any, which are readily availableand on ?le at the City. If provided,these
documents are solely for additional information to the Consultant and do not relieve the
Consultant of its duties and obligations under this Agreement nor do they constitute any
representationor warranty by the City as to conditionsor other matters related to the Project.

. 3.4 Consultant shall take all precautionsreasonablynecessary to perform the
Workand shallbe responsiblefor the safety of its employees,agents and subconsultantsin
the performanceof the Work.

3.5 Even though Consultant is an independentcontractor with the authority to control
and direct the performanceand detailsof the Work, the Work must meet the approvalof City
and shall be subject to City's general right of inspection and supervision to secure the
satisfactory completionof this Agreement.

Period of Performance

4.1 CompletionDate. Consultant shall commence the Work upon the City's
issuance of the notice to proceedand shall completeall Work no later than December31st,
2019 ("CompletionDate"), unless extendedor terminatedearlier by the City pursuant to the
terms and conditionsof this Agreement. The "Periodof Performance" is the period of time
betweenthe EffectiveDate and the CompletionDate.

4.2 Project Schedule. The general Project Schedule is set forth in Exhibit B,
‘attachedhereto and incorporatedherein by this reference. Time is of the essence for the
Project.

4.3 Time Extensions. The Total Price, Period of Performance, and task
budgets shall not be increased becauseof any unwarranteddelays or costs attributableto the
Consultant. In the event of a delay not attributableto the Consultant that could not be
reasonablyanticipatedand results in an increase in costs to perform the Work, the City may
at its discretion, throughthe executionof an amendment, increase the Total Price, Period of
Performance,and/ortask budget.

Administration and Supervision

5.] C11; The City Engineer or its designee (who shall be designated in
writing by the City) shall perform day-to-day management of this Agreement. Unless
otherwiseindicatedin writing by the City Manager or its designee, the City Engineer will
issue notices to proceed, approve all requests for payment, authorize termination or
modificationof tasks, and approve in writing changes to the task budgets outlined in the Cost
Summary, Exhibit C, attachedhereto and incorporatedherein by this reference, provided _

that such changes do not impact the Total Price or the Period of Performance. The City
Engineer will also be responsible for determining when the Consultant has satisfactorily
performedall Work and forensuring that the Consultant complieswith all provisionsof this
Agreement. -

Page 2 of 15

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 90 of 148



5.2 Consultant. The Consultant represents that it has, or will obtain, all
personnel necessary to perform the Work and that such personnel shall be quali?ed,
experienced,and licensed as may be necessary or required by laws and regulations to

perform the Work. All services requiredunder this Agreement shall be performedby the
Consultant, its employees,or by subconsultantswhose selectionhas been authorizedby the
City; provided that the City's authorizationshall not relieve the Consultant or its
subconsultantsfrom any duties or obligationsunder this Agreement or at law to performthe
Work in a satisfactory and competent manner. Consultant shall ensure that all contractual
duties, requirementsand obligationsthat the Consultantowesto the City shall also be owed
to the City by the Consultant's subconsultantsretainedto perform the Work.

5.2.1 Authorized Subconsultants. The Agreement shall identify in the
Key Subconsultant List, Exhibit D, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this

' reference, the subconsultantsthat are authorizedto perform Work under this Agreement, or
shall state that there are no subconsultants.

5.2.2 Process for Adding or RemovingKey Subconsultants

5.2.2.1If during the term of this Agreement, the Consultantwishes to
add or remove a key subconsultant as identi?ed in the Key Subconsultant List, the
Consultant shall provide the City Engineer with a written request identifying the proposed
changeandobtainwrittenauthorizationby the City.

5.2.2.2 The City has sole discretion to approve or reject a proposed
change in a key subconsultant. Before any key subconsultantnot already identi?ed in the
Agreement can perform any Work, the Consultantmust obtain written authorization?'om the
City.

5.2.3 Process for Adding’or Removing Key Personnel

5.2.3.1 If during the term of this Agreement, the Consultant wishesto

add or remove key personnelas identi?ed in the Key Personnel List, Exhibit E, attached
hereto and incorporatedherein by this reference, the Consultant shall provide the City
Engineer with a written request identifying the proposed change and obtain written
authorizationby the City.

5.2.3.2The City has sole discretion to approve or reject a proposed
change in’ any key personnel. Before any key personnel not already identi?ed in the
Agreement can perform any Work, the Consultantmust obtainwritten authorizationfrom the
City.

5.2.3.3 If a change is made substituting or changing assigned key
personnelor subconsultants, the Consultantshall pay any and all costs associatedtherewith,
including "Transfer of Knowledge and Information." Transfer of Knowledge and
Information shall include all time, labor hours, and costs for reviewing Project
documentation,participating in meetings with Project personnel, and participating in site
visits to familiarize the person or subconsultantwith the Project, the Work, and the Project
location(s).

Page 3 of 15
726492.6l0l445S.00065

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 91 of 148



5.2.4 City‘May Request Removal of Subconsultantor Personnel, The
Consultant shall remove from the Project any personnel or subconsultant, including key
personnelor key subconsultantsif, after the matter has been duly consideredby the City and
the Consultant, the City considerssuch removal appropriateor necessary and in the best
interestsof the Project and so advisesthe Consultantinwriting.

5.3 Nondiscrimination. In all hiring or employment decisions arising from
this Agreement, there shall be no unlawfuldiscriminationagainst any employee or applicant
for employmentbecauseof sex, age, race, color, creed, nationalorigin,marital status, sexual
orientation,political ideology,veteran or military status, genetic information,familymedical
history, or the presence of any sensory, mental,or physical handicap,unless basedupon a
bona?de occupationalquali?cation. This requirementshall apply to, but not be limitedto,
the following: employment,advertising, layoff or termination,rates of pay or other forms of
compensation,and selection for training, including apprenticeship.No person shall be
denied or subjected to discriminationin receipt of the bene?t of any servicesor activities
made possible by or resulting from this Agreement because of any of the protected
characteristicsidentifiedabove.

Changes in Work

6.1 The City may at any time direct the Consultant to make additions within
the general scope of the Work, deleteportionsof the Project, or revise portions of the Work.
Any direction from the City that results in an increase or decrease in the Scope of Work or
Project Schedule,changesthe Total Priceor Period of Performance,or changesaffecting the
Scope of Work and Total Price for the Project shall be made only by an amendment to this
Agreement prior to the work being performed. Subject to Section 6.2 below, the City
Manager is the only authorizedCity representativewhomay sign suchamendments.

6.2 Changes described in Section 6.1 above may be made in writing by the
City Engineer if such changes individually,and cumulativelyas to all such changes for the
Project,do not increasethe TotalPricespecifiedin Section10.1.

6.3 In the event the Consultant identifies something that may materially
impact the Scope of Work, Project Schedule, and/or Total Price, Consultant shall
immediatelyinform the City Engineer.

Responsibility of the Consultant

7.1 Standardof Care

7.1.1 The Consultant shall be responsible for the professional quality,
technicaladequacy and accuracy, timely completion, and coordinationof the Work and all
plans, designs, drawings, specifications,reports, and other services prepared or performed
pursuant to this Agreement. The Consultant shall exercise the degree of care skill and
diligence normally employed by professionalconsultants engaged in the same profession,
and performing the same or similar services at the time such services are performed. The
Consultantshallbe responsiblefor the professionalstandards, performance,and actions of all
persons and ?rms performing the Work. The Consultant shall, without additional

Page 4 of 15
726492.6101445500065

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 92 of 148



compensation,correct or revise any errors, omissions, or specificbreachesof a contractual
obligation in the Work or any plans, designs, drawings, speci?cations,reports, and other
servicesperformedunderthis Agreement.

7.l.2 The City's acceptance of any portion of the Work, or any plans,
drawings, designs, specifications,reports, and other products of the professional services
rendered hereunder shall not in any way relieve the Consultant of responsibilityfor the
adequacyand accuracy thereof. The City's review, approval,acceptance of, or payment for
all or any of the Work, shall not be construednor shall it operate as a waiver of any rights
under this Agreement or of any cause of action arising out of the performance of this
Agreement.

7.1.3 The Consultant shallbe knowledgeable and familiar with the
current edition of the City's Contract Documents (available?om the City), and the current
edition of WSDOT Standard Speci?cationsfor Roads, Bridges and MunicipalConstruction.
All technical specifications drafted by the Consultant shall be consistent with these
documentsand shallnot create any conflicttherewith.

'

7.1.4 The Consultant shall promptly bring to the City’s attention all
concerns that the Consultant hasregardingthe Work, design or any ?nding, conclusions,or
finaldecisionsmadeby the City. The ‘Consultantshall,at the City’srequest, providethe City
with a written evaluationof its concerns, along with proposedsolutionsto any identified
problems.

7.2 Maintenanceof ProiectDocumentation

7.2.1 Upon request by the City Engineer, the Consultant shall provide
the City with access to all documentsand correspondence,includinge-mail communications,
memoranda, computer ?les, and all other materials preparedor used in performance of the
Work.

7.2.2 The Consultantacknowledgesthat informationand documentation
submittedto the Citywill in all likelihoodbe considereda public record in accordancewith
the Revised Code of Washington and may not be exempt from disclosure under the
Washington State PublicDisclosureAct.

7.2.3 The Consultant acknowledges that unauthorized disclosure of
informationor documentationconcerningthis Projectmay cause substantialeconomicloss or
harm to the City. Except as otherwise required by court order or subpoena, the Consultant
shall not without prior written authorizationby the City Engineer allow the release,
dissemination, distribution, sharing, copying, or other publication or disclosure of
informationor documentation obtained, discovered, shared or produced pursuant to this
Agreement.

Deliverables

8.1 In the performance of this Agreement, the Consultant shall to the extent
practicable prepare a design that provides for maximum use of structures, machines,

Page 5 of 15
726492.6101445100065

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 93 of 148



10.

products,materials,constructionmethods,and equipmentthat are readily available through
competitiveprocurement, through standardor proven productiontechniques,methods, and
processes,or comprisestandardmaterialor productsidenti?edby the City.

8.2 The Consultant shall not produce a design that would require the use of
structures, machines, products, materials, construction methods, equipment, or processes
which theConsultant knows to be availableonly from a single source, unless the Consultant
hasfirstprovideda writtenjustificationfor the use of a single source and the City concurs.

8.3 The Consultant shall not produce a design thatwould be restrictiveor is
written in such a manner as to contain proprietary, exclusionary, or discriminatory
requirements (other than those based upon performance), unless such requirementsare
necessary to test or demonstrate a speci?c thing, or to provide for necessary
interchangeabilityof parts and equipment,in which case the Consultantshall first providea
writtenjusti?cation for the use of such design or speci?cationand the City concurs.

8.4 When one or more brand names or trade names of comparablequalityor
utility are listedthe words "or approvedequal"shall follow the brand name(s) and the salient
characteristicsshall be identi?ed.

Commencement and Monthly Reports

9.1 Notice to Proceed. After executionof this Agreement by the City and the
Consultant, the City will issue a written notice to proceed on the Project and may issue
writtennotice(s) to proceedon specific tasks thereof if necessary to produce specifiedwork
products. Upon receipt of a notice to proceed, the Consultant shall promptly commence
work.

9.2 Monthly Reports. Unless otherwise stated in the Scope of Work, the
Consultantshall submit to the City Engineerwith each invoice a monthly report in a format
approved by the City Engineer sufficient to show the activities completed and the Project
progress as measuredagainst the Project Schedule and Cost Summary. At a minimumthe
monthly report shall identify work completed, costs incurred, budget status (budget vs.
estimated balance to complete), amendments,project schedule, any variance between
plannedvs. actualProject performance,all issues that may result in completionof any task
beyond the establishedschedule or task budget, and all issues that may result in an increase
in Total Price.

Compensation

10.1 The City will pay the Consultant for authorized and satisfactorily
completedWork in accordancewith the terms of this Agreement. Consultant shall be paid
on the basis of time actually expendedand out-of-pocket expenses in accordance with the
work hours and the rate(s) and for all supervision, labor, supplies,materials, equipmentor

use thereof, taxes, and for all other necessary incidentals all as specified in the Cost
Summary. In no event, however, shall the total cumulative payment(s) paid by the City
exceed the sumof $98,374, including applicablestate taxes (“Total Price"). The Total Price

Page 6 of 15
726492.l5I0l445S.O0U65

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 94 of 148



11.

is the maximum amount to bepaid under this Agreementand shall not be exceededwithout
priorwrittenauthorizationfrom City intheform of a negotiatedand executedamendment.

10.2 Invoice Process. The Consultantshall submit to the City Engineer an
invoice for payment for Work once per month. The invoice shall identify the Work
completedsince the previous invoice, and shall be computedpursuant to this Agreement.
Theinvoicemay be combinedwiththe monthlyreport specifiedin Section9.2.

10.2.1 Invoice Details. Invoices shall detail the Work by task, hours, and
employee name and level for which payment is being requested; include copies of all
invoices from authorizedsubconsultantsand suppliers for whichpayment is being requested;
andshall itemize,and includecopies of, receiptsand invoices’for all other directcosts.

10.2.2 MaximumAmount. At no time shall the total cumulativeamounts
paid for the Work (calculatedas a percentage of the Total Price) exceed the Total Priceor the
amount that would be due based on the percentage of the Work satisfactorily completedas
determinedby the City.

10.2.3 Payment. Upon acceptance by the City of the invoiced Work,
which acceptance shall not be unreasonably withheld, Consultant shall be compensatedin
accordancewith the City’s usualprocedures. In the event of a disputed invoice, the City may
pay the undisputedamounts and withholdfrom payment the disputedportionof the invoice.

10.3 Final Payment. Final payment to the Consultant for the Work will be
made in accordancewith the City’s usualproceduresafter all of the following are veri?ed by
the Directorof PublicWorks:

10.3.1 Satisfactory completionof all of the Work;

10.3.2 Receipt by the City of the plans, studies, surveys, photographs,
maps, calculations, notes, reports, warrantiesand all other documents and/or deliverables
which are requiredto be preparedandsubmittedby the Consultant;

10.3.3 Delivery of all equipment and/or materialspurchased speci?cally
for the Projectwherethe Cityhas reimbursedthe Consultantfor such costs.

10.4 Release. Acceptance of any payment by Consultant shall constitutea
release of all payment claims againstCity arising under this Agreement as to such portionof
the Services. No payment to the Consultant, whether periodic or ?nal, shall constitute a
waiver or release by the City of any claim, right or remedy it may have against the
Consultant regardingperformanceof the Work as required by this Agreement.

Termination of Agreement

11.1
_

Terminationfor Default

Page 7 of 15
726492.6I0l4455.0006S

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 95 of 148



11.1.1 The Citymay terminatethis Agreement, in wholeor in part and at
any time, in writing if the Consultant substantiallyfails to ful?ll any or all of its material
obl-igationsunderthis Agreement through no fault of the City.

ll.l.2 If the City terminatesall or part of this Agreement for default, the
' City shall determinethe amount of work satisfactorilyperformedto the date of termination

and the amount owing to the Consultant using the criteriaset forth below;provided,that (a)
no amount shallbe allowedfor anticipatedpro?t on unperformedWork and (b) any payment
due to the Consultant at the time of terminationmay be adjusted to the extent of any
additional costs the City incurs or will incur because of the Consultant'sdefault. In such
event, the City shall consider the actualcosts incurredby the Consultant in performingthe
Work to the date of termination, the amount of Work originally required which was
satisfactorily completedto the date of tennination,whetherthat Work is in a form or of a
type which is usable and suitableto the City at the date of termination,the cost to the City of
completing the Work itself or of employing another ?rm to complete it and the
inconvenienceand time which may be requiredto do so, and other factors which affect the
valueto the City of the Work performedto the date of termination. Under no circumstances
shall payments made under this provisionexceed the Total Price set forth in this Agreement.
This provisionshall not precludethe City from ?ling claims and/or commencinglitigation
to secure compensationfor damages incurredbeyond that coveredby withheldpayments.

11.1.3 If a terminationfor default by the City is ultimatelydeterminedto
be wrongful, it shall be deemeda terminationfor convenience,and not a breach of this
Agreement.

11.2 Terminationfor Convenience

11.2.1 The City may terminatethis Agreement,in whole or in part and at
any time, in writingfor the convenienceof the City.

11.2.2 lf the City terminatesthis Contract for convenience, the City shall
pay the Consultantthe amount otherwisedue in accordance with this Agreement for services
satisfactorily performed to the date of termination. Under no circumstances shall payments
made under thisprovisionexceedtheTotalPrice set forth in this Agreement.

ll.2.3 If the City terminatesthis Contract for convenience, the City shall
pay the Consultantthe amount otherwisedue in accordancewith this Agreement for services
satisfactorily performedto the date of termination. Under no circumstancesshall payments
made under thisprovisionexceed the Total Price set forth in this Agreement.

11.3 Consultants Duties Upon Termination

11.3.1 Upon receipt of a termination notice, whether by default or for
convenience, the Consultant shallat no additionalcost to the City:

ll.3.l.l Promptly discontinueall Work affected (unless the notice
directs otherwise);

Page 8 of 15
726492.6/01445100065

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 96 of 148



12.

13.

11.3.1.2 Terminate all contracts with subconsultants to the extent
they relateto the Work terminated;and

11.3.1.3 No later than fourteen (14) calendar days a?er receipt of
termination,promptly deliver or otherwise make available to the City all data, drawings,
electronicdrawing ?les, speci?cations,calculations,reports, estimates,summaries,and other
Project documentation, such other information and materials as the Consultant or
subconsultantsmay have accumulatedin performingthis Agreement, whethercompletedor
in progress and all equipment/materialspurchasedspeci?cally for the Projectwhere the City
has paid the Consultant for such items.

ll.3.l .4 Take any actionnecessary, or that the City may reasonably
direct,for the protectionand preservationof property or Work related to this Agreement that
is in the possessionof the Consultantand in which the City has or mayacquirean interest.

Ownership and Use of Documents

12.1 All documents, drawings, speci?cations,designs, computer programs,
software, reports and other work product (collectively referred to as "Work Product")
developed or produced by Consultant for the City in connection with the Work rendered

underthis Agreement shall be owned by the City. Consultantshall provide such Work
Product to the City on 'a data disk compatible with the City's computer equipment and
programs. As between the Consultantand the City, the Work Product shall be worksmade
for hire under all applicablecopyrightlaw and the City shall own any and all copyrights to
such Work Product. Consultant agrees to transfer and assign all ownership rights and
copyrightsto such Work Productto the City to give effect to this Section. Consultant?lrther
waives any and all moral rights (includingrights of integrityand attribution) in and to the
WorkProduct. Re-use of any WorkProductby the City for other than the Project that is the
subject of this Agreement or modi?cation in use by the City of any of the WorkProduct
without the Consultant'spriorwrittenapprovalshall be at the City's sole risk.

12.2 To the extent it is determined any other records held by the
Consultant relating to the Services are subject to the Washington Public Records Act
(RCW 42.56), the Consultant shall promptly deliver such records to the City for
purpose of responding to a public records request. This section shall survive
terminationof this agreement.

Third-Party Claims and Disputes

13.1 At the City’s request, Consultant will assist the City in review and
evaluation claims and disputes, preparing informationfor the City’s legal counsel, providing
servicesas witnessin litigation or arbitrationto which the City is a party, and providing other
services in connection with actual or potentialclaims or disputes arising out of the Work,
regardless of whether or not consultant is named in such legal action. The Parties shall
cooperate to agree on the compensationfor such services. If Consultant is determinedto be
responsiblefor the claim, disputeor litigationdue to its act, omission, negligenceor breach

Page 9 of 15
726492.610l4455.00065

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 97 of 148



14.

15.

16.

of this Agreement, it shall remit back to the City the amounts paid underthis Sectionto the
extent of such act, omission,negligenceor breach.

Audit and Access to Records

14.1 The Consultant, including its subconsultants, shall maintain books,
records, documents, and other evidence directly pertinent to performance of the Work in
accordancewith generallyacceptedaccountingprinciplesandpracticesconsistentlyapplied.
The City, or any of its duly authorizedrepresentatives,"shall, for the purpose of audit and
examination,have access to and be permittedto inspectsuch books,records,documents,and
otherevidencefor inspection,audit,and copying for a periodof six years after completionof
the Project. The City shall also have access to such books, overheaddata, records and
documentsduring the performanceof the Work if deemed necessary by theCity to verify
workperformedand invoices, to assist in negotiations for amendments to the Agreement or
modificationsto tasks,and to resolveclaimsand disputes.

14.2 Auditsconductedunder this Section shall be in accordancewith generally
acceptedauditing standardsand establishedprocedures and guidelines of the reviewing or
auditing agency.

14.3 Consultant shall providethe City, six years after completionof the Project,
all originalbooks,records, documents, and other evidencedirectly pertinentto performance

"

of the Work.

Legal Relations

15.] The Consultant shall comply, and shall ensure its subconsultantscomply,
with all the terms of this Agreement and the City resolutionsand federal,stateand local laws,
regulationsandordinancesapplicableto the Work to be performedunder this Agreement.

15.2 ‘ In performingthe Work, the Consultant and its subconsultants, employees,
agents and representativesshall be acting as independentcontractors and shall not be deemed
or construed to be employees or agents of the City in any manner whatsoever. The
Consultantshall not hold itself out as, nor claim to be, an officer or employee of the City by
reason hereof and will not make any claim, demand, or application to or for any right or
privilege applicable to an of?cer or employee of the City. The Consultant shall be solely
responsible for any claims/costs and/or losses arising from the Consultant's failure to pay
wages, compensation, benefits, or taxes and/or pay for services, supplies, and/or
materials provided by Consultant employees, agents and representatives, including
subconsultants, and will protect, defend, indemnify and hold the City harmless therefrom.

15.3 The City's rights and remedies in this Agreement are in addition to any
other rights and remediesprovided by law. The City may exercise suchrights and remedies
inany orderand at any time as itdeterminesnecessary or appropriate.

Indemnification and Insurance
'

16.1 Indemni?cation.

Page l0 ofl5
726492.6/01445100065

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 98 of 148



16.1.1 Consultantshall indemnify, defendandholdharmlessthe City, its
of?cers, officials,employees,andvolunteers("Indemni?ed Parties") from and against all
claims, damages,losses, and expenses,assertedagainstone or more Indemni?edParty
arising out of or resultingfrom the Consultant'sperformanceof the Workor any obligation
under this Agreement, to the extent causedby the negligent acts or omissionsof the
Consultant,its subconsultants,anyone directlyor indirectlyemployedby them,or anyone for
whose acts theymay be liable("Indemni?ed Claim"), regardlessof whetheror not such
claim,damage,loss or expense is causedin part by an IndemnifiedParty. Such obligation
shallnot be construedto negate, abridge,or reduceother rights or obligationsof indemnity
whichwouldotherwiseexist as to a party or person describedin this Section.Wherean
Indemni?edClaimis causedby or resultsfrom the concurrent negligenceof the Indemni?ed
Parties and the Consultant,the.Consultant'sduty to indemnifyand defend the Indemnified
Partiesas providedfor hereinshall apply only to the extent of the negligence of the
Consultantor itssubcontractors,consultantsor other partiesfor whom the Consultant is
responsible.

16.1.2 Consultant’sobligationsunderthis Section include,but are not
limitedto, all claimsagainst an IndemnifiedParty by an employeeor formeremployeeof the
Consultantor any of its subcontractors. For thispurpose, the Consultantexpressly waives,as
respects to the IndemnifiedPartiesonly, all immunityand limitationon liabilityunderany
IndustrialInsurance Act, includingTitle51 RCW, or other worker’s compensationact,
disabilityact, or other employeebene?t actof any jurisdiction whichwouldotherwisebe
applicablein the caseof sucha claim.

BY SIGNING THE AGREEMENT THE OWNER AND CONSULTANT CERTIFY
THE WAIVER OF IMMUNITY SPECIFIED BY THIS PROVISION WAS
MUTUALLY NEGOTIATED.

16.1.3 Consultant’sobligationsunder this Sectionshallsurvive expiration
or terminationof the Agreement. In the event of litigationbetweenthe partiesto enforce the
rightsunder this Section, reasonableattorney fees and costs shall be awardedto the
prevailingparty.

16.2 Insurance.

16.2.1 Insurance. The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the
duration ofthe Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to

property which may arise ?°om or in connectionwiththeperformanceof the work hereunder
by the Consultant, its agents, representatives,or employees.

16.2.2 No Limitation. Consultant’s maintenanceof insuranceas required
by the agreement shall not be construedto limit the liabilityof the Consultantto the coverage
providedby such insurance,or otherwiselimit the City’s recourse to any remedy available at

lawor inequity.

16.2.3 Minimum Scope of Insurance.Consultant shall obtain insurance
of the types describedbelow:

Page l1ofl5
726492.6!0l4455.00065

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 99 of 148



1. AutomobileLlablli? insurancecoveringall owned, non-owned,hired
and leasedvehicles.Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services
Office(ISO) form CA 00 01 or a substituteform providingequivalent
liability coverage. If necessary, the policy shall be endorsed to
providecontractualliabilitycoverage. The City shall be named as an
additional insured under the Consultant’s Automobile Liability
insurancepolicywith respect to the workperformedfor the City.

2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO
occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from
premises,operations,independentcontractors and personal injury and
advertisinginjury. The City shall be named as an additionalinsured
under the Consultant’sCommercialGeneral Liability insurancepolicy
withrespect to the workperformedfor the City.

3. Workers’Compgnsation coverage as required by the Industrial
Insurance laws of the State of Washington.

4. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the Consultant’s
profession.

16.2.4 MinimumAmounts of Insurance. Consultant shall maintain the
following insurancelimits:

l. AutomobileLiability insurancewitha minimumcombinedsingle limit
for bodilyinjuryand property damageof $1,000,000per accident.

2. CommercialGeneralLiabilityinsuranceshall be writtenwith limits no
lessthan $1,000,000 each occurrence,$2,000,000generalaggregate.

3. ProfessionalLiabiligg insuranceshall be written with limits no less
than $1,000,000per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit.

l6.2.5 Other Insurance Provisions. The insurancepolicies are to contain,
or be endorsed to contain, the -following provisions for AutomobileLiability, Professional
Liability and CommercialGeneral Liability insurance:

1. The Consultant’s insurancecoverage shall be primary insurance as
respect the City. Any insurance, self-insurance, or insurance pool
coverage maintainedby the City shall be excess of the Consultant’s
insuranceand shall not contributewith it.

2. The Consultant’s insurance shall be endorsed to state that coverage
shall not be cancelled by either party, except after thirty (30) days
priorwrittennotice by certified mail, return receipt requested,has been
given to the City. In the event that such endorsement carmot be
obtained from Consultant’s insurance carrier, Consultant shall be

Page 12 of 15
726492.6I0i445S.00065

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 100 of 148



17.

18.

responsiblefor providingnotice in accordance with the terms of this
provision.

16.2.6 Acceptabilityof Insurers. insurance is to be placed with insurers
with a current A.M. Best rating of not less thanA:VIl.

16.2.7 Verificationof Coverage. Consultant shall fumish the City with
original certi?cates and a copy of the amendatory endorsements, including but not

necessarily limited to the additional insured endorsement, evidencing the insurance
requirementsof the Consultant before commencement of the work, which is attached and
incorporatedby thisreferenceas Exhibit F.

16.2.8 Failure to Maintain Insurance. Failure on the part of the
Consultant to maintain the insurance as required shallconstitute a material breach of
contract, upon which the City may, after giving ?ve business days’ notice to the Consultant
to correct the breach, immediately terminate the contract or, at its discretion, procure or
renew such insuranceand pay any and all premiumsin connectiontherewith,with any sums
so expendedto be repaid to the City on demand,or at the sole discretionof the City, offset
against funds due the Consultant from the City.

Disputes and Remedies

17.1 Choice of Law. This Agreement and -all provisions hereofshall be
interpretedin accordancewith the laws of the State of Washington in effect on the Effective
Date.

17.2 City Manager Review. All claims, counter-claims,disputes, and other
matters in question between the City and the Consultant arising out of or relating to this
Agreement shall be referred to the City Manager or a designee for determination,together
with all facts, data, contentions,and so forth which relate thereto. The City Manager shall
make a determinationwithinthirty (30) calendardays of such referral.

17.3 Alternate Dispute Resolution. Should the claim, counter-claims, or

disputes not be resolved by the City Manager's decision, the parties shall attempt to resolve
the matter through professional mediation, which shall be conducted within thirty (30)
calendar days of the City Manager's decision. The cost of mediation shall be shared
equally.

17.4 Exhaustionof AdministrativeRemedies. Referral to and determinationby
the City Manager or a designee and ADR shall be a condition precedent to the
commencement of a civil action to adjudicatesuch dispute.

17.5 Jurisdiction & Venue The Superior Court of Snohomish County,
Washington, shall have exclusivejurisdictionand venue over any legal action arising under
this Agreement and the laws of the state of Washington shall apply.

Notice

Page l3 of 15
726492.6I0l4455.00065

...—......__.........._._--_.-- -....—.....- ......_....._._...._..__....._..._...._j:__.__-...:_¢.

.
:. ‘-.........- .

.................-.-:-:-————...-...—....-. ..._....-....._..-.......__....__........._...............-...........-...«....-.a.....~.....-..-.....—...............—........

...........__ _

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 101 of 148



19.

18.] Any noticerequiredto be givenunder the terms of this Agreement shallbe
in writingand directed to theparty at the addressset forth below. Noticeshall be considered
issued and effective upon receipt thereof by the addressee-party. Facsimilenoticeshall be
consideredeffective with proofof confirmationthat the addresseehas receivedthe facsimile.
Such proof wouldbe a confirmationsheet evidencingsuch receiptat the fax numberlisted
below.

City Engineer
City of MillCreek
15728Main Street
Mill Creek,Washington 98012
425-745-1891(p)
425-745-9650(f)

KPFF ConsultingEngineers
1601FifthAvenue Seattle,WA 98101
206-382-0600(p)

General Terms

19.1 Integggtion. The written terms and provisions of this Agreement, together
with all referenced Exhibits, supersedeall prior verbal statements of any officer or other
representativeof City, and such statements shall not be effectiveor be construedas entering
into or forming a part of, or alteringin any manner whatsoever, this Agreement. The entire
agreement between the partieswith respect to the subject matter hereunderis contained in
this Agreement and the referencedExhibits.

19.2 Priorityof Documents. In the event that the language and provisionsof
this Agreement are contrary to or con?ictwith any language or provisionsset forth in any
exhibit to this Agreement, the language and provisions of this Agreement shall control,and
the contrary or conflicting language or provisions of the exhibit(s) shall be disregardedand
shall be considered void. Consultant's standard terms and conditions, whether printed on,
attached to, or otherwise incorporatedinto an exhibit or elsewhere, shall not be binding on
Owner.

19.3 Assiggment. Consultant shall not assign any portion of its duties or
obligations under this Agreement without the City'sprior writtenconsent. Any assignment of
this Agreement by Consultantwithoutthe priorwritten consent of City shall be void.

19.4 Modi?cation. No waiver, alteration,or modi?cation of any of the
provisionsof this Agreement shall be binding unless in writing and signed by a duly
authorizedrepresentativeof City and Consultant.

l9.5 Waiver. A waiver of any breach by either party shall not constitute a
waiver of any subsequentbreach.

Page 14 01°15
726492.6I0l4455.00065

II$ ?§tIl uvIonIIov-anus-qua-g-av-au—ug-:—¢ .: .._:...........~........... .............................4......_....__....._...._._

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 102 of 148



19.6 Exhibits. The Exhibits included in the Agreement are identi?ed below.
Any inconsistency or conflict between these Exhibits (all as may be modified by the latest
amendment) shall be resolved by giving precedence in the following descending order of
importance:

19.6.1 Exhibit A, Scope of Work;

19.6.2 Exhibit B, Project Schedule;

19.6.3 Exhibit C, Cost Summary;

19.6.4 Exhibit D, Key Subconsultant List;

I9.6.5 Exhibit E, Key Personnel List;

19.6.6 Exhibit F, Insurance

19.7 Authorized Signatures. By their signatures below each party represents
that they are fully authorized to sign for and on behalf of the named principal above.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties l1ave caused this Agreement to be executed by
their respective authorized officers or representatives as of the day and yearwritten below.

CITY OF MILL CREEK KPF F

,ZZ__;'
Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager Rob Price, Associate

Date: Date: 2/7; 24/?

ATTEST:

, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Scott Missal], City Attorney

Page 15of 15
726492.(>l0I44S5.0?065

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 103 of 148



Consulting
Engineers

EXHIBITA

KPFF I 1601 Fifth Avenue, Suite 1300 Seattle, WA 98101| O 206.382.0600

San Francisco Long Beach Los Angeles Sacramento Irvine San Diego Seattle Tacoma Portland Sl.Lnuls Louisville Chicago New York Was|1ingmnD.C.

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 104 of 148



Scope of Work — CONTRACTTWO
Consulting

Project: Construction Management for Exploration Park E"-gmeers

Owner: City of Mill Creek
Prime Consultant: KPFFConsulting Engineers, Inc.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION
KPFF will be providing Construction Management and Inspection Services for the City of Mill
Creek's Exploration Park project. Exploration Park is located on an existing 1.2 acre park site
which is currently an irrigated grass area surrounded by landscaping beds. The design will
include a new walking path along the park perimeter, play equipment as well as natural play
features like large logs, climbing rocks, a tunnel through a berm and a slide built into the berm,
park benches, new shade trees, and maintain roughly half the park area as an open informal
play lawn. The project also includes drainage improvements to address current lawn area

drainage issues and incorporate a new swale and rain garden feature.

KPFF’srole for this project is split into multiple contracts — this is the second of two known
contracts.

TEAM MEMBER ROLES
Rob Price will serve as Construction Program Manager. Rob will oversee the construction

management and inspection program for this project. He will be available to provide guidance
and backup for our services.

Brianna Navarro will serve as Construction Project Manager. Brianna will be the main point of

contact. Brianna will handle document management, pay application review and
recommendation, construction meeting facilitation, and playground equipment inspection.
Brianna is certified as a CPSIfor inspection of playground equipment.

Thadd Zehnder will serve as Lead Inspector. Thadd will oversee day to day work and will be
primarily in charge of inspection and coordination of testing as necessary. Thadd will be
available for construction meetings and will assist Brianna with pay application review.

Project Controls and Admin will review and coordinate contract terms with KPFFinsurance and
risk management groups, build project files, edit and format for consistency of deliverables, and
process monthly billings.

CAD Technician will produce the CAD as—builts.Prior to producing the drawings, KPFF shall be
provided the relevant necessary files as detailed in the CADsection to follow in this scope.

KPFF| 1601 Fifth Avenue, Suite 1300 Seattle, WA 98101| O 206.382.0600

San Francisco Langlaeach Lasmurgcles Sacramento Irvine San Diego Seattle Tacoma Porlland St Louis Louisville Chicago NewVovl< Washington [).C.

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 105 of 148



PROJECTSCHEDULE
The project schedule and associated construction management budget are based upon the
Contractor obtaining Physical Completion within 100 working days of Notice to Proceed, as
defined in the contract provisions. It is anticipated that the Contract Time will commence by
May 2019.

ASSUMPTIONS
This proposal incorporates anticipated level of effort for construction observation part time
approximately three (3) days a week during a 100 day, eight (8) hour working day construction
contract plus (1) week preconstruction services prior to the start of construction and (2) weeks
after Physical completion for contract closeout activities, and administrative services
throughout.

Project meetings include (1) preconstruction conference and (20) weekly construction progress
meetings. Consultant assumes all meetings will be held at Mill Creek City Hall or a nearby
location. Consultant anticipates leading all meetings including development and distribution of
agendas and minutes.

Document control, including but not limited to submittals, RFls, and Change Management

Documents (field directives, change negotiation plans, independent cost estimates,
recommendation for payment, etc.). Services identified include tracking, routing, review and
action. -

Consultant assumes that the Engineer of Record has been retained for design specific
construction support services including review and response to design submittals and RFls.

Consultant anticipates tracking certified payroll submittals but does not anticipate auditing or
' performing wage interviews with laborers.

Consultant assumes no on-site office space and willconduct work from our own Everett office.

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 106 of 148



SCOPEOF WORK
The following is a scope of work for Contract 2 of the project.

TASKONE - PROJECTMANAGEMENT

1.1 — Project Management and Contract Administration
KPFFwill manage the contractual relationship with the City of MillCreek, subconsultants,
other contractors in the vicinity of the project, and coordinate monthly billings.

KPFF will provide Construction Management and point of contact for the City and
Contractor. Provide interpretation of the plans and contract provisions and verify

conformance with these documents, in conjunction with the design team. Provide
coordination of the inspection staffing and subconsultants that comprise the construction
management team.

Reviewand monitor the Contractor's construction plan / schedule and track contract

working days with respect to contract requirements and changes.

Facilitate communications and maintain an accurate record of correspondence with the
City, Contractor and stakeholders.Prepare and distribute correspondence to the City,

Contractor and stakeholders, as needed.

The Consultant will also develop project controls specific to this contract including logs
and posted working documents.

TASKTWO - PRE-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

2.1 - Pre-construction Meeting
The City will provide the meeting location for the pre—construction meeting. The
Consultant will attend and facilitate the pre—construction meeting. The Consultant will
also prepare and distribute the meeting minutes to the stakeholders.

TASKTHREE- CONSTRUCTIONSERVICES

3.1 - Field Reports / Documentation
Review and compile the daily construction inspection reports, including but not limited to

photo documentation, playground inspection, and traffic patterns for each aspect of the
construction activity. Thadd will be the primary inspector and Brianna will supplement as
needed and provide inspection of playground equipment.

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 107 of 148



3.2 — Weekly Progress Meetings
Prepare agenda and facilitate weekly construction meetings with the Contractor during
steady periods of construction activity. Prepare and distribute the meeting minutes to the
City, Contractor and stakeholders.

3.3 — Submittal Review / Recommendations
Distribute to engineer/architect of record or review Contractor shop drawings, product
information and material samples prior to construction for conformance with the Plans
and Contract Provisions. Develop, update and manage a log of submitted documents.

3.4 - Changed Conditions / RFI/ Change Orders
Review Contractor Request for Information (RFI)and design change requests. Evaluate
them with the design team and provide recommendations to the City for action. Provide
written response to Contractor RF|s. Prepare and process construction field authorizations
and resultant change orders. Track changes to the approved Plans and Contract
Provisions.

3.5 - Contractor Payment Applications
Develop, review and approve progress payment applications. Make a recommendation.
and submit required paperwork to the City for payment to the Contractor.

3.6 - Site Construction Observation
Monitor and document the Contractor's daily activities. Monitor and document the
Contractor's work for compliance with plans and contract provisions. Provide copies of
the daily reports to the City, Contractor and stakeholders, indicating the status and
compliance of the Contractor's work with the Plans and Contract Provisions.

Observe traffic patterns during construction.

Observe the technical conduct of the construction, including providing day-to-day contact

with the construction Contractor, City, utilities, and other stakeholders, and monitor for
adherence to the Contract Documents.

Observe material, workmanship, and construction areas for compliance with the Contract
Documents and applicable codes, and notify construction Contractor of noncompliance.
Advise the City of all non-conforming work observed during site visits.

Interpret Contract Documents, in coordination with Designer.

Evaluate issues which may arise as to the quality and acceptability of materialfurnished,
work performed, and rate of progress of work -performed by the construction contractor.

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 108 of 148



Establish communications with adjacent property owners. Respond to questions from
property owners and the general public.

Upon substantial completion of work, coordinate with the Client and affected agencies, to

prepare a ’punch list’ of items to be completed or corrected. Coordinate final inspection
with those agencies.

3.7 - On-Site Materials Testing / Inspection
Coordinate materials and laboratory tests. Coordinate the work of the Field
Representative(s) and testing laboratories in the observation and testing of materials used
in the construction; document and evaluate results of testing; and inform City and
construction Contractor of deficiencies.

Document and log special inspection locations, dates and results.

TASK FOUR- CONTRACTCLOSEOUTAND RECORDDOCUMENTS

4.1 - Substantial Completion / Final Inspection / Physical Completion
Facilitate the project completion process by performing inspections of work and making a
determination of Substantial Completion. Develop a written list of remaining deficiencies
and provide the punch list to the Contractor for corrective actions. Coordinate with the
Contractor for the Operational Testing of all mechanical,electrical, irrigation systems /
machinery and other systems identified in the Plans and Contract Provisions.

Upon notification from the Contractor of completion of the punch list items and
Operational Testing, perform a Final Inspection. Once any corrective measures are
satisfactorily completed and inspected, make a recommendation to the City for the
project Physical Completion Date.

4.2 - Record Drawings
Compile and deliverto the City a set of Record Drawings based upon red-lines provided by
the Contractor. The Contractor shall be responsible for the content and accuracy of the
provided information. KPFFwillproduce the CADas-builts.

Prior to producing the drawings, KPFFshall be provided the ZIP file (e—transmitted from
AutoCAD) of the latest and most current design drawings, their references (XREFs),and all
associated configuration files (including CTBpen file).

4.3 - Project Closeout Documentation / Completion Date
Complete’and compile project closeout documents including final payment contract

voucher, QC reports, 0 & M manuals, inspection reports, permit closeout, and Contractor

review forms. Compile all documentation from the Contractor required by the contract

and governing laws. Once the documentationis accepted, provide a written final
acceptance / contract completion letter to the City.

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 109 of 148



Consulting
Engineers

EXHIBITB

KPFF | 1601 Fifth Avenue, Suite 1300 Seattle, WA 98101] 0 20643810600

San Franniscc Long Beach L05 Angeles Saciamemo Irvine San Diega Seattle Tacoma Pcrliand SLLcuIs Louisville Chicago NewVork Washingtun D.C

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 110 of 148



EXHIBITB
Consulting

Project: Construction Management for Exploration Park E”9i”e9'5

Owner: City of Mill Creek

Prime Consultant: KPFFConsulting Engineers, Inc.

PROJECTSCHEDULE
The Contractor will provide the schedule for the construction work. The project schedule and
associated construction management budget are based upon the Contractor obtaining Physical
Completion within 100 working days of Notice to Proceed, as defined in the contract provisions.
It is anticipated that the Contract Time will commence by May 2019.

KPFF | 1601 Fifth Avenue, Suite 1300 Seattle, WA 98101| O 206.382.0600

San Franziszc Lung Beach LosAngE|es sazramenza lrvme San Diego Seattle Tacoma Portland St. Louls Lnulsville Chizaga Newvark Washington Dc

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 111 of 148



Consulting
Engineers

EXHIBITC

KPFFI 1601 Fifth Avenue, Suite 1300 Seattle, WA 98101| O 206.382.0600

5anFran:|s:a Lung?each Losiingeles Sacramento Irvine San Diego Seattle Tacoma Par?and Sl.Lnuis Louisville Chicago NewVavk Washington DC

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 112 of 148



E
m

m
cazm u:_=

:m
_._aU

kll¥

m
w

utzm
m =

u
L

ém
O

w
l nm

m
as?l:39...

uzzm
a...
k<

<
nnam

ushas
=

e=
uunm

5 E
uaqm

_
§m

.m
m

332
eom

snom
.

caauoum
s

E
uE

=
u£oou_

w
e...R

um
."E

u!
2:

can
nom

enni
E

S
L

S
S

5»
5:3:

H
E

E
E

.
«m

m
... E

?s?m
38m

«m
an

5.:
m

m
m

x
S

E
uE

%
_..m

as
L

S
N

»
.E

__u:co_:_w
m

on
_0>

N
...H

3.83
_

m
uucuaxm

_

8..N
m

E
N

,
5

oN
m

.tm
83$

ow
ns.»

om
m

m
xw

23$
2.23

ea
om

m
9

5
8

R
E

;
35

$5
35

m
_:B

€m
?t

«N
N

.
N

E
3

m
am

«E
.

8
28...

.53

9.3
o

o
o

o
N

N
c

28
E

_§._=
ao\

.§§.a.E
_uen_

_=
88_u

.$_.E
3

am
?»

o
o

o
S

N
o

o
m

9__zm
_o98%

N
e.

03;»
o

o
o

o
..

N
N

=
o__%

_=
ao_8_m

.E
n_:_

82.
_m

=
_u:.s

u_._=
au_m

__££=
m

3
am

oao
m

m
:_3E

o
E

auaz
.25

5003.0
auuzzou

c
as.»

o
o

N
o

N
o

a
S

_.8%
:_

\
8:3»

m
_m

__2m
2

2_m
.__o

3
oz

.3»
5

o
oN

_
c

S
N

9
V

_a__m
>

am
..o

_a__ua.m
_ao

2_m
on

$3»
a

o
o

o
N

N
.

o
22.5

&
<

__a=
;$a.um

_.:eo
m

a
$5;

a
o

o
a

N
m

N
235

a9_m
__u::w

:m
__o_

9.60
R

ac?u
to

2:
.5

o
o

o
o

N
w

o
32:3.

_m
___=

_e_m
an

8N
3

o
o

o
a

8
ov

o
&

=
__$2

323$
>

:$>
>

N
o

838
o

o
9.

o
m

m
o

o
.a_.u_§=

=
_8o

\
é?am

E
N

E
E

835
m

3_>
.aw

=
a_:E

.u=
ou

n
$3

o
o

o
o

N
N

c
9232

.a_§_..2842n_
..N

ow
n»

nou_>
3m

=
c=

u=
.am

:ou.u.mN
S

n...»
«N

N
.

o
a

o
3

N
_

.a__s_m
_=

_.%
<

sszou
E

m
._aeu_§_m

2
3&

2“.
5

23.3»
=

.2_&
._..2

622..
_.

xm
u._.

0
0.95.

h
a?u?uo

Z
m

ccm
tm

om
._.

N
35:»

2
a:=

m
___m

aura
sax

>
2

_.:E
u<

m
_E

=
._ao

.o.u2_m
:_

cm
_u=

:_u3.
E

§am
=

_
_m

m
n:m

_2
.m

m
m

:m
_2

E
2.

._._o>
>

V
in...

«m
oo

.58.
.

_ua_o€
:c_.u=

:m
:eo

n_<
u

uum
._

.um
_oE

F
_m

._m
0._l

N
33

55
_._$.o

____2

m
po?vh

N .um
:=

ou .
m

_=
uu:um

m
.m

E
_.m

m
aw

n. m
._:$.__m

_.m

{m
m

:o_.S
o_nxm

.8
m

oo_?_....w
E

aE
am

u:us_
:o:u:.:m

=
ao

€20.
_2

3
>

:U

E
zvm

sow
m

m
". u:w

E
.._ow

t<

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #E.

Exploration Park - C
onstruction M

anagem
ent and Inspection Professional S...

Page 113 of 148



kpff
KPFF CONSULTING ENGINEERS

Special Projects Division

FEE SCHEDULE
for

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES

Rates are effective January 1, 2018
and are subject to change January 1, 2020.

Personnel Charges

Principal $210/hour

Senior Project Manager $200hour

Rob Price Project Manager $185/hour

Senior Technical Specialist $195/hour

Senior Engineer $165/hour

Professional Engineer $145/hour

Brianna Navarro Construction Project Manager $140/hour

Thadd Zehnder
/TBD Engineer

Design Engineer $130/hour

Designer $110/hour

Sr. CAD Technician $125/hour

CAD Technician $110/hour

TBD Project Coordinator $115/hour

Administration $80/hour

Reimbursable Expenses

Non-salary costs such as charges for express mail, delivery, photography, reproduction,
automobile mileage, parking and client—directed out—of—towntravel shall be reimbursed at
cost without mark-up.

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 114 of 148



Consulting
Engineers

EXHIBITD

KPFF I 1601 Fifth Avenue, Suite 1300 Seattle, WA 9810110 206.382.0600

San Francisco Long Beach LesAngeIes Sacramento wine SanDiego seam: Tacoma Fenland 5l.Lauis Lauisville Chicago NewYnrk washmgmn D.C.

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 115 of 148



EXHIBIT D
Consulting

Project: Construction Management for Exploration Park Engineers

Owner: City of Mill Creek

Prime Consultant: KPFFConsulting Engineers, Inc.

KEYSUBCONSULTANT LIST
KPFFproposes to use the following subconsultants:

0 Robinson Noble, Geotechnical Testing
0 AARTesting, Special Inspections
0 Pacific CM, supplementary general inspection

o Currently not anticipated
o If used, willaccount for no more than 10% of inspection

KPFF | 1601 Fifth Avenue, Suite 1300 Seattle, WA 9810110 2063820600

san Francisco Longiaeach Losmigeles Sacramento iivme San Diego Seallle Tzcuma Portland 5:. Louis Louisville Chicago Newvark WashinglonD.C.

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 116 of 148



Consmting
Engineers

EXHIBITE

KPFF | 1601 Fifth Avenue, Suite 1300 Seattle, WA 98101| O 206.382.0600

San Francisco Lunglieach LosAnge|e5 Sacramento In/he San Diego Seam: Tacoma Porlfand St. Louis Louisville Chicago N:wYark Washington D‘C.

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 117 of 148



EXHIBITE
Consulting

Project: Construction Management for Exploration Park E"9i"ee’S

Owner: City of Mill Creek

Prime Consultant: KPFF Consulting Engineers, Inc.

KEYPERSONNEL LIST
Key personnel for this project are as follows:

0 Brianna Navarro, Project Manager and CPSI,KPFF
0 Rob Price, Program Manager, KPFF
0 Thadd Zehnder, Lead Inspector
- Demaree Trull, Project Controls
0 Angie Gangon, Administrator

KPFF| 1601 Fifth Avenue, Suite 1300 Seattle, WA 98101lO 206.382.0600

sari Francisco Longaeach LosArigeIes Sacramento Iivine San Diego seanie Tacoma Portland St. Louis Louisville Chicago NewVorl< Washington DICA

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 118 of 148



Consulting
Engineers

EXHIBITF

KPFF| 1601 Fifth Avenue, Suite 1300 Seattle, WA 98101| O 206.382.0600

San Francisco Long Beach Lus Angeles Sacramento Irvine San Diego Seam: Tacoma Portland Sl.LnuIs Louisville Chicago New Vark Washington D.c.

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 119 of 148



CIient#:25326 KPFFINCO

ACORD... CERTIFICATEOF LIABILITYINSURANCE
THISCERTIFICATEIS ISSUEDAS A MATTEROF INFORMATIONONLYANDCONFERS NO RIGHTSUPON THECERTIFICATEHOLDER.THIS
CERTIFICATEDOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELYOR NEGATIVELYAMEND,EXTENDOR ALTERTHE COVERAGE AFFORDED BYTHEPOLICIES
BELOW.THISCERTIFICATEOF INSURANCEDOES NOT CONSTITUTEA CONTRACTBETWEENTHE ISSUING INSURERIS),AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVEOR PRODUCER,ANDTHECERTIFICATEHOLDER.
IMPORTANT:if the certificate holder is an ADDITIONALINSURED, the poIlcy(Ies)must have ADDITIONALINSUREDprovisions or be endorsed.
IfSUBROGATION IS WAIVED,subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certi?cate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

P3093053 .'. °' Katie Kresner
GTBVIIITQIDS.BTOKOFBQBIEPIC ’

Inilg?éicExt : 7705524225 "0 : 866.5!-’o‘4o82
3780 MansellRoad, Suite 370 E-rann. Ka“e.K,.esne|.@g,ey"ng.com
Aipharetta, GA 30022

“"5”
_

INSURERS AFFORDINGCOVERAGE

msuggg A, National Union Fire Ins. Co.

msumga 3 ,The continental Insurance Company
KPFF, Inc. "“*““”“‘”"“ ”'”““"“"“‘

mguggg c ,Lioyds of London
16015th Ave

msuRm_
Suite 1600 'E‘":"""""'""““'”""“”"'""""""""““'
Seattle, WA 98101

'

COVERAGES CERTIFICATENUMBER: ‘I8-‘I9 REVISIONNUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFYTHATTHEPOLICIESOF INSURANCELISTEDBELOWHAVEBEENISSUEDTOTHE INSUREDNAMEDABOVE FORTHE POLICYPERIOD
INDICATED.NOTWITI-ISTANDINGANY REQUIREMENT.TERM OR CONDITIONOF ANYCONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENTWITHRESPECT TO WHICHTHIS
CERTIFICATEMAYBE ISSUED OR MAYPERTAIN.THE INSURANCEAFFORDEDBY THE POLICIES DESCRIBEDHEREINIS SUBJECT TO ALLTHE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONSANDCONDITIONSOF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITSSHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

to ..-. —-v...... - -—~..
_

a II P°|-i°Vi‘L£i-li!§|3......_..,.._ .Iv.@I.If‘I"‘"r-‘Ir‘-5‘=3':v'i"v'»7_ “W78

GL5268336 4101/2018 04I01I201‘ E_ACHOcCU§§§_N_§EM___”____$1,_I_I_0NQ,QQQ_.__

BQEQEEISNLEPM$500 ooo
mmj

“
PRO-

POLICY JECT L00I IZI I:I- omen;

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOSONLY

8050399824

WC022298245(AOS)
WC022298244 (CA)

ANDEMPLOYERS‘LIABILITY YI N
ANYPROPRIETORIPARTNERIEXECUTIVE
OFFICERIMEMBEREXCLUDED? INI
mandatory in NH)
ll describeunder
D SCRIPTIONOF OPERATIONSbelow

Professional!
Pollution Liab

‘I4l0‘II20‘I804I01I20‘I
E.L.DISEASE-EAEMPLOYEE:1 000 000

s1 oooooo
01101201810/101201‘ Per Claim $10,000,000

E'K§%‘i§§éo 4101/201804!01I201- 1,ooo ooo
BODILYINJURY(Per person) 5

BODILYINJURY(Per eecideni) 5

Aggregate $10,000,000

WW IjPer accident

SIR $250 000
DESCRIPTIONOF OPERATIONSI LOCATIONS!VEHICLESIACORD101.AdditionalRemarks Schedule.may be eiiached Ifmore space is required}

$10 000 ooo
:10 oooooo

Re: Construction Management for Exploration Park contract 2018.KPFFJob 1800007. The city of MillCreek is
named as an Additional insured on the above referenced liability policies with the exception of workers

PER......SIAIJJIE.
_E.LEACHACCIDENT

compensation & professional liability where required by written contract. Should any of the above described
policies be cancelled by the Issuing insurer before the expiration date thereof, we willendeavor to provide
30 days‘ written notice (except 10 days for nonpayment of premium) to the Certi?cate Holder.

B0146LDUSA1804384

CERTIFICATEHOLDER CANCELLATION

O‘ f MmC k sI-IouI.e ANYor THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIESea CANCELLEDserene
W° "99 THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, «once WILL BE oeuvsnsol IN

cuy Engineer ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

15728 Main Street
Botheii, WA 98012-0000 “‘”"°“‘zE° "E""E3E’"““VE

«:74/K6415,-
© 1983-2015 ACORDCORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25 (2016103) 1 of 1 The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
#5121825910111214603 KKRE1

AGENDA ITEM #E.

Exploration Park - Construction Management and Inspection Professional S... Page 120 of 148



. )
ciTY.or/Lg!/,_

Agenda Item #L
W A S H I N G T O N Meeting Date: February 19, 2019

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington

AGENDA ITEM: RATIFICATION OF PROCLAMATION OF LOCAL
EMERGENCY

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:

The City Manager issued a Proclamation of Local Emergency at approximately 7:30 am,
Monday, February 11, 2019 in recognition of the local and regional winter storm event that was

causing hazardous conditions and signi?cant impact to the City ofMi11 Creek. The severity of
the winter storm event was determined to be beyond the capability of local resources.

The City’s Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan allows the City Manager to issue such
proclamations provided that it is ratified by the City Council as soon as practical following the
emergency.

The Proclamation allowed the City to quickly obtain outside resources (private contractor) to

plow and sand City streets. The Proclamation is also a prerequisite for any available State
funding for response efforts.

The Proclamation of Local Emergency will remain in effect until terminated by the City
Manager or rejected by the City Council.

CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:

Council ratification of the Proclamation of Local Emergency issued by the City Manager on
February 11, 2019.

ATTACHMENTS:

o Proclamation of Local Emergency

ert S. Stowe
Interim City Manager

AGENDA ITEM #F.

Ratification of Proclamation of Local Emergency (Bob Stowe, Interim City... Page 121 of 148



Proclamation

WHEREAS, the City Manager of the City of Mill Creek has determined that the local

and regional storm event is causing hazardous conditions and signi?cant impacts in the City of

Mill Creek; and,

WHEREAS, the winter storm event has created conditions of extreme peril to the safety

of persons and property that exist in Mill Creek; and,

WHEREAS, all available resources are committed to winter storm work; and,

WHEREAS, the City requires supplemental assistance; and,

WHEREAS, the severity of this winter event is beyond the capability oflocal resources.

NOW THEREFORE, the City Manager for the City of Mill Creek does hereby proclaim
the severe winter storm event constitutes an emergency as de?ned by the City of Mill Creek

Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan and necessitates the utilization of emergency

powers granted under Chapter 38.52070 RCW.

Signed this 11"‘day of February 2019
Q

Hi
CITY OFM111f:”?’e’ei<
W A S H I N G T O N

Robert S. Stowe, Interim City Manager

AGENDA ITEM #F.

Ratification of Proclamation of Local Emergency (Bob Stowe, Interim City... Page 122 of 148



i \
Z‘*'%7‘

Milléreek
W A S H I N G T O N

Date: February 19, 2019

A/P Check Batches
Dated Check Numbers Amount
12/26/2018 AC1-IDebit-Dept of Rev-Sales Tax $1,118.17
12/31/2018 59686-59761 $1,392,881.94
01/16/2019 ACH-Union 76 Fleet-Dec $4,719.86
01/18/2019 59762 $2,083.30
01/24/2019 59763-59811 $360,422.26
01/25/2019 ACH Debit—Deptof Rev-Sales Tax $5,342.41

Total $1,766,567.94

Voided Checks
Numbers Explanation

CLAIMS APPROVAL

We, the undersigned Finance/Audit Committee of the City of Mill Creek, recommend approval of check
numbers 59686 through 59811, and ACH in the amount of$1 766 567.94.

We recommend approval of the above stated amount with the following exceptions:

‘Q.
Councilmember '

an

Councilmember im Cit;Manager

F:\DATA\EXECU‘l'l VE\W |’\FOR MS\FlN\Vonchcr Approval l.(loc

AGENDA ITEM #G.

Approval of Checks #59686 through #59811 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 123 of 148



Business Licensing and Taxes

Return Payment

Home

'_ Return Payment

CITYOF MILLCREEK
600-593-011

C

R

ontact us

.s'°s:§a°:::4(9
WashingtonState

<< My DOR Services

Welcome, Sandra Kottke Seuings Help

Return Payment

[E3Applies To History

Nov—30-2018 1,118.17 Source Z ACH Debi!

Posted : Dec—26-2018

View Support ID was-d bv
SGCUTQACIESS
Washington...

Access alher Stale Agencxes

vmu Pnvar/| Access Agveemem

a 2m 9 Washington sum Deparlmem ol Rnvtnua
and Rs hcensms
All ughls 1=s:N=d

Working together to fund Washington's future

Log Out

AGENDA ITEM #G.

Approval of Checks #59686 through #59811 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 124 of 148



RptBatchSumViewForm Page 1 of 1

ACH Cash Pro Online Report Date: 01/15/2019

City of Mill Creek ReportTime: 03:53:16 PM

Batch Summary Report by ID Number

Company Name: City of Mill 01 Effective Date:

ACH ID: 2911225895 Batch Sequence:

Application Name: CCD Payments and Collections Database Name: 76

Batch Status: Released Created By: SANKO1TKE

Released By: SANKOTTKE

_lQ Amount Q_ Bank ID Account # % Trace it

0201-00-
1059153 W c 071000288 4539508 C

Total Amount in Batch Total Count in Batch

Debits $0.00 0

Credits $4,719.86 1

Prenotes $000 0

Grand Total Amount Grand Total Count

Debits $0.00 0

Credits $4119.86 1

Prenotes $0.00 0

https://cpo-ach.bankofamerica.com/wcmpr/rptbatchsumviewlbrm.jsp?s0urce=BATCHSU...1/15/2019

AGENDA ITEM #G.

Approval of Checks #59686 through #59811 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 125 of 148



My DOR Page 1 of 1

Business Licensing and Taxes « MyDOR Services

Return Payment Welcome.Sandm Kom<e seumgs Help Log Out

| Home Dec-31-2018 Return Payment

* Return Payment E] Applies To History

CITY OF M”—'-CREEK Deo-31-2018 5,342.41 Source : ACH Debit
600-598-011

Posted 1 Jan—25-2019

Received a
Dec-31»2D18 '

?z

Coma at us View Support ID ,!’E'i".i’L___._
secureAccess
Washin gton...

Depnvtmcn!of (1
Reven“e .

>

Access other Slate Agenmes

WashingtonState
Yum Fnvacy | Access Aaleemcnl

9 2:119 Wasmnginn sxsxeDlpanmlnl ul Revenue
and us I-censors
ANnumsreserved

Working together to fund Washington's future

https://secure.dor.yva.gov/atlaseservices/wtp/J
I

1/31/2019

AGENDA ITEM #G.

Approval of Checks #59686 through #59811 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 126 of 148



Accounts Payable §

_
5

Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date "'

User: Jodicg D‘
Printed: 2/7/2019 1:13 PM CITY. wk

W A S 1-1I N G T O N

Check No \"em:1or No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount

Invoice No Description Reference

59686 AWC AWC Employee Bene?t Trust 12/31/2018

01/2019 R Polizzotto COBRA-January Payment 1,282.96

Total for Check Number 59686: 0.00 1,282.96

59687 HARBORPC Harbor Paci?c Contractors, Inc 12/31/2018
No. 6 3511:Ave Reconstruction 11/04-12/01 843,532.48

Total for Check Number 59687: 0.00 843,532.48

59688 K/\GENCOI\ K-A General Construction Cont. 12/31/2018
Retainage Retuinage-2016 Police Locker I{ooins»Tenant lrr 4,184.16

Total for Check Number 59688: 0.00 4,184.16

59689 9lISUPPL 911 Supply Inc 12/31/2018
64469 Shipping Clrgs-Uniform Patches to Pigskin 13.04

IN-11089 Z-Shield/ Custom Badges-Building Official 220.80

IN-11091 1 ~ I./S Sltirt—GElwin 49.67

IN-11112 27 Hero Stripes 37.13

IN-12038 Body Armor Vest-T Billinger 949.44

IN-I207‘) Body Annor Vesl—SEastman 963.79

IN-12464 Z - Polo Shins W/Embroidery-T Hotlack 154.54

Total for Check Number 59689: 0.00 2,388.41

59690 ADI ADI 12/31/2018

TF851K01 High Gain Directional Antenna-Library 251.47

TF852C01 High Gain Directional Antenna-CI-‘IN 251.47

Total for Check Nutnber 59690: 0.00 502.94

59691 ADPLLC ADP, LLC 12/31/2018

527776261 ADP Payroll Services-Worktbrce Now 12/31 386.55

Total for Check Number 59691 0.00 386.55

59692 Alcxande Alexander Gow Fire Equipment 12/31/2018

0000021487 IT Server Room Fire Suppression System 20,148.00

Total for Check Number 59692: 0.00 20,148.00

59693 ALEXPRCO Alexander Printing Company Inc 12/31/2018
5829‘) 500 Business Cards-T Justice & C Amrine 165.60

Total for Check Number 59693: 0.00 165.60

59694 BANKCARII Bank ofAmerica 12/31/2018

1 MyBui1dingPermit.comMonthly Fee 59.95

10 I-lardHats, Heavy Duty Rain Jacket-PW 231.82

11 Arrnory Cleaning Supplies, AR-15 Armers Vice, 260.64

AP Checks by Dale — Detail by Check Date (2/7/2019 1:13 PM) Page I

AGENDA ITEM #G.

Approval of Checks #59686 through #59811 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 127 of 148



Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount

Invoice No Description _ Reference

12 Door Sweep-PD 16,16

13 Forest Pest Control-M Harbison 70.00

14 Treated Posts-Street Sign 155.93

15 18Inch Galv Pipe-Library Fire System 29,39

2 Postage-Operation Paperback 226.60

3 3 Boxes Postage Meter Tape 42.90

4 Chainsaw Sharpener, Wedge ChainSaw, Saw W 197,2]

5 Canine Liability 360 01/22 & 01/23-R Fleming 2 530.00

6 Coin Envelopes-Property Room 16.81

7 Mouse Traps-CHS 78.54

8 Safety Lights-PW1 248.90

9 Postage 60.30

Total for Check Number 59694: 0.00 2,225.15

59695 BANKCR16 Bankof America 12/31/2018
1 Ethical Considerations in LocalGovemment-C 19 35.00

Total for Check Number 59695: 0.00 35.00

59696 BANKCR25 Business Card 12/31/2018
1 Credit-Champion Sports Heavy Nylon Lanyard- -15.98

2 Postage-Operation Gratitude-Mailedto Military 404.78

3 Champion Sports Heavy Nylon Lanyard-12Pac1- 15.98

4/5 26 Referee Uniforrns/2-12 Pack Whistles Lanyar 656.76

6 Parking 12/18-HistoricalPreservation Project-.11 6.00

Total for Check Number 59696: 0.00 1,067.54

59697 BANKCR26 BusinessCard 12/31/2018
1 EconomicAlliance-State of Everett Address-M '1 35.00

2 Ethical Considerations for Local Government 01 35.00

3 Assoc of Sno Co Cities & Towns MembershipR 200.00

Total for Check Number 59697: 0.00 270.00

59698 BANKCR27 Business Card 12/31/2018
1 Vehicle Repair Estimate-Car#10 255.90

2 IACP MembershipDues-SEastman 150.00

Total for Check Number 59698: 0.00 405.90

59699 CMHEAT C M Heating Inc 12/31/2018
175044 Refund Permit No. B2018-0773-CustomerCane: 43.26

Total for Check Number 59699: 0.00 43.26

59700 CDW CDW Government 12/31/2018

QJZ8248 10-Additional Licenses-Exchange Email Migrati 148.38

QKW5070 APC Rep1acemcntBattcry-PDBattery Backup 50.78

Total for Check Number 59700: 0.00 199.16

59701 CedarVis Cedar VistaLLC
‘

12/31/2018
Rec #142853 Refund Street Deposit - RW20l6-0220 1,000.00

Total for Check Number 59701: 0.00 1,000.00

59702 CITYBELL City of Bellevue 12/31/2018
34179 MBP Surcharge-Qtr4, 2018 2,093.25

AP Checksby Date - Detail by CheckDate (2/7/2019 1:13 PM) Page 2

AGENDA ITEM #G.

Approval of Checks #59686 through #59811 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 128 of 148



Check No VendorNo Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount

Invoice No Description Reference

Total for Check Number 59702: 0.00 2,093.25

59703 CITYLYN City of Lynnwood 12/31/2018

15046 Jail Room & Board—Nov2018 668.00

Total for Check Number 59703: 0.00 668.00

59704 CODPUBCO Code Publishing Company 12/31/2018
' 62240 MC MunicipalCode-WebUpdate 12/28-‘Ord201 189.85

Total for Check Number 59704: 0.00 189.85

59705 CSA CSA Mill Creek Real Estate LLC 12/31/2018
RW2017-0035 Refund Street Deposit - RW20l 7-0035 29,945.00

Total for Check Number59705: 0.00 29,945.00

59706 ADLFSASC ESA 12/31/2018
142735 Prof Serv-Supportfor City Projects-12/01-12/31 62.50

Total for Check Number59706: 0.00 62.50

59707 Yasovard Yasovardhan Eswarawaka 12/31/2018
Ree #174766 Refund PassportFees—YasovardhanEswarawaka 70.00

Total for Check Number 59707: 0.00 70.00

59708EVERGTEC Evergreen Technologies Inc 12/31/2018
14896 Install 1 cat 6 to 3 WAPS-City of MC WAPS 855.60

Total for Check Number 59708: 0.00 855.60

59709 Faro Faro Technologies, Inc 12/31/2018
90556994 FARO Laser Scanner S/N# LLS08 I813539N R I 41,729.11

Total for Check Number 59709: 0.00 41,729.11

59710 FELDMAJ Feldman & Lee, P.S. 12/31/2018
December2018 Public Defender Contract Flat Fee-Dec 9,000.00

Total for Check Number 59710: 0.00 9,000.00

59711 GRYOSBRN Gray & Osborne Inc 12/31/2018
9 ProfServ-35th Ave Recon CM & lnsp ll/11-12/I 48,351.35

Total for Check Number 59711: 0.00 48,351.35

59712 SNOCOHU Snohomish County Human ServicesDept. 12/31/2018
1000492335 2% Liquor Pro?ts/Liquor Excise Taxes-3rd Qtr 1,133.49

Total for Check Number 597 I2: 0.00 1,133.49

59713 INNOVAC INNOVAC 12/31/2018
1NV13379 Vactor Services-The Parks ' 3,255.42

INV13388 Vactor Services-Library Park 1,893.36

Total for Check Number 59713: 0.00 5,148.78

59714 .lamesKer James Kerby 12/31/2018
Ree #127820 Refund Street Deposit - PW2015-0219 25.000.00

AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (2/7/2019 1:13PM) Page 3

AGENDA ITEM #G.

Approval of Checks #59686 through #59811 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 129 of 148



Check No Vendor No

Invoice No

Void Checks Check Amount

59715

59716

59717

59718

59719

59720

59721

59722

S1-IURKLEN
409
409a

MIGSVR
0056753

NORTHSH
9059

OMWATT
819169

819773
819774

819775
8197758
819776

819777
819778

819779

819780
820198

OREILLY
2986-188337
2986-188363

2986-188364
2986-188473
2986- 1887 14

2986- l89l82

2986-190694

PACFIRSE
65307

PACRIMC
11-2018

12-2018

PAWS
December 2018

November2018

Vendor Name Check Date

Description Reference

Total for Check Number 59714:

Kramer Enterprises, LLC 12/31/2018
Vehicle Washes-Police VehiclesAug-Dec2018

Vehicle Washes-StaffCars, PW & Bldg Vehicles

Total for Check Number 59715:

MIG/SVR 12/31/2018
Prof Serv North Pointe Pk/ExplorationPk Final 1

Total for CheckNumber 59716:

Northshore Senior Center 12/31/2018
Allocation for SeniorProgram-4thQtr2018

Totalfor Check Number 59717:

Ogden Murphy Wallace Attorneys 12/31/2018
Prof Legal Services-Franchises-Nov
Prof Legal Services-Council-Nov

Prof Legal Scrviccs-CED-Nov

Prof Legal Services-Engr-35thAve Recon-Nov

Prof Legal Services-Engr-Nov

Prof Legal Services-Exec-Nov
Prof Legal Services-HRLEOFF Board-Nov
Prof Legal Services-MartinSuit-Nov

Prof Legal Services-Police-Nov
Prof Legal Services-RP Investigation/Complaint;

Prof Legal Services-Franchises-Dec

Total for Check Number 59718:

O'Reilly Automotive Inc 12/31/2018
2-Trl Brk Ctrl PW4 & 5, Ball Mount-PW4, Lock

BrkHarness-PW4 & PW 5

Latch I-look-DumpTrailer
2 Led Cubes, 3 Rocker Switch-PW 1.RVAntifrt

Fuse Kit OEM-PW 4

Heat Shrinl<,CutterCrimper,WireStripper, Key (

Tire Gauge, Air Blow Gun

Total for Check Number 59719:

Pacific Fire and Security, Inc. 12/31/2018
IT Server Room Fire Suppression

Total for Check Number 59720:

Paci?c Rim Code Services, Inc 12/31/2018
Prof Service-Plan Reviews-Nov
Prof Service-Plan Reviews-Dec

Total for Check Number 59721:

PAWS 12/31/2018
Animals Brought To Shelter-Dec
Animals Brought To Shelter-Nov

Total for Check Number 59722:

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

25,000.00

499.56
119.90

619.46

2,982.50

2,982.50

3,125.00

3,125.00

103.50
3,445.00

2,130.00

3,453.00

512.00
697.50

1,467.50
422.50
345.00

6,997.50
323.00

20,956.50

307.95
44.14

15.44
95.31
15.00
55.14
17.94

550.92

436.08

436.08

5,127.88
2,509.26

7,637.14

181.00
543.00

724.00

AP Checks by Date - Detailby Check Date (2/7/2019 1:13PM) Page 4

AGENDA ITEM #G.

Approval of Checks #59686 through #59811 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 130 of 148



Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount

Invoice No Description Reference

59723 BLLITIRE PepBoys-Remittance Dept 12/31/2018
064462005320 Battery & Installation-Car#41 _ 107.50

Total for CheckNumber 59723: 0.00 107.50

59724 PERTEET Perteet Inc 12/31/2018
20160281.006-10 Prof Services TMDL Testing and Reporting 09/O 240.00

2016028l.0l 8-2 Prof Serv The Farm at Mill Creek 10/01-‘12/31 727.50

20180189.000-1 Prof Serv Surface Water Aging Infrastructure 10: 775.00

20180189.000-2 Prof Serv Surface Water Aging Infrastructure 12¢ 26,873.36

Total for Check Number 59724: 0.00 28,615.86

59725 PETTY CA Petty Cash Fund 12/31/2018
1 POP TokensReimb-Farmers Market 07/27-Haytu 26.00

la POP Tokens Reimb-FarmersMarket 07/27—Tualc 18.00

2 POP Tokens Reimb-Fam1ersMarket 08/02-Haytc 8.00

2a POPTokens Reimb-FarrnersMarket 08/02-Gold 7.00

2b POP Tokens Reimb-Fanners Market 08/02-Tualc 12.00

3 Reimb Lunch-MCBA Board Mtg 08/07-J Kirk 12.57

4 POP Tokens Reimb-FamiersMarket 08/ 10—Hayt« ' 8.00

4a POP Tokens Reimb-FamiersMarket 08/ 10-Tualc 10.00

4b POP Tokens Reimb—FarmersMarket 08/10-Ruiz 28.00

5 POP Tokens Reimb-FarmersMarket 08/ 17-1-Iayta 54.00

5a POP Tokens Reimb-FannersMarket 08/17-Bauti « 24.00

Sb POP Tokens Reimb-FarmersMarket 08/17-Tualc 29.00

6 POP Tokens Reimb-Farmers Market 08/24-Haytc 14.00

6a POP Tokens Reimb-Farmers Market 08/24-Tualt 4.00

7 Reimb Parking 07/27-PSRC Mtg-K Mahmoud 9.00

8 Reimb Parking 09/20-STORM Fall Quarterly MI 20.00

9 ReimbParking 10/26-PSRC Mtg 10/26-K Mahtr 9.00

Total for Check Number 59725: 0.00 292.57

59726 PILCHVT Pilchuck Vet Hospital 12/31/2018
227234

1

Emergency Consult, FluoresceinStain, Opthalmi 147.22

Total for CheckNumber 59726: 0.00 147.22

59727 PLAYWELL Play-Well TEKno1ogies 12/31/2018 _

6922 Winter Wonderland Engineering 12/26-12/28 #6!
1 749.00

Total for Check Number59727: 0.00 749.00

59728 SNOCPUD PUD No. 1 of SnohomishCounty 12/31/2018
200743599 Street Lights-189 Lights-200W 12/01-12/31 1,736.91

201353968 15728MainSt 12/06-01/04 1,417.72

201663515 14600 16th Ave SE 12/04-01/02 24.30

201669280 16110 1/2 29th Dr SE 11/27-12/27 33.35

201781135 2701 155thSt SE 11/30-01/02
‘ 58.86

202230108 1900 164thSt SE 12/08-01/08 31.19

202529210 Street Lights - 386 Lights-100W 12/01-12/31 1,389.60

202570776 Street Lights-87Lights-250W 12/01-12/31 942.21

202624391 Street Lights-841Lights-100W 12/01-12/31 6,021.56

202767935 Street Lights-21 Lights-400W 12/01-12/31 312.90

202909941 Street Lights-6 Lights-150W12/01-12/31 28.98

202926333 14729 12thAve SE 11/28-12/28 16.74

203028121 4560 SAC 12/07-01/09 74.59

203251632 15510Village Green Dr 11/30-01/02 18.36

204717524 Street Lights-8 Lights-200W 12/01-12/31 47.68

204717532 Street Lights - 38 Lights-250W 12/01-12/31 285.38

AP Checksby Date - Detailby Check Date (2/7/2019 1:13PM) Page 5

AGENDA ITEM #G.

Approval of Checks #59686 through #59811 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 131 of 148



Check No

59729

59730

59731

59732

59733

59734

Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount

Invoice No Description Reference

204717540 Street Lights - 39 Lights-400W 12/01-12/31 441.48

205087232 Street Lights - 17Lights-100W 12/01-12/31 52.87

205495328 Street Lights - 49 Lights-20W 12/01-12/31 17.15

220317390 Street Lights - 1 Light 12/01-12/31 7.94

220612410 1560122nd Ct SE 11/30-12/31 25.58

220763510 1333244th Ave SE 12/06-01/08 82.28

221293111 Street Light-1 Light-160W 12/01-12/31 5.18

Total for Check Number 59728: 0.00 13,072.81

LEXNEXIS RELX Inc 12/31/2018
3091765463 LexisNexis MonthlyChgs 11/01-11/30 186.09

Total for CheckNumber 59729: 0.00 186.09

SANDACLN Sanda Cleaners 12/31/2018
Nov/Dec Uniform Dry Cleaning 11/12-12/27-GElwin & 5 328.45

NovIDeca UniformDry Cleaning 11/07-12/20-S Conner 140.41

Total for Check Number 59730: 0.00 468.86

SNOCOSI-10 Snohomish County Sheriffs Office 12/31/2018
1000491773 SRDTF JAG Grant Contribution Oct-Dec 2018 1,314.00

1000493335 Range Use-10 Hours 12/11 580.00

Total for Check Number 59731: 0.00 1,894.00

SI-IREDIT Shred-It USA Inc 12/31/2018
8126392903 Shredding Service Fee 10/27 & 11/05 373.39

Total for Check Number 59732: 0.00 373.39

SILVERL Silverlake Water District 12/31/2018
14112-27585 132nd& SR 5271rrig 12/01-12/31 7.60

14737-19068 1361728th DR SE1rrig 12/01-12/31 7.60

17679-27345 15429 1/2 Bothell Everett Hwy 12/01-12/31 7.60

17684-27596 15429Bothel1Way-Irrig 12/01-12/31 7.60

24079-27593 Hillside Irrig 12/01-12/31 7.60

32140-27632 13903N Creek Dr-Irrig 12/0|-12/31 7.60

32141-27633 13903N Creek Dr 12/0|-12/31 68.05

35995-27914 SR 527-Irrig 12/01-12/31 7.60

35996-27914 14600SR 527-Irrig 12/01-12/31 7.60

35997-27914 13800 N SR 527-Irrig 12/01-12/31 7.60

35998-27914 1600SR 527-Irrig 12/01-12/31 7.60

35999-27914 15200SR 527-Irrig 12/01-12/31 7.60

36000-27914 15100N SR 527-1n'ig12/01-12/31 7.60

36016-27914 SR 527 & Trillium Blvd-Irrig 12/01-12/31 7.60

36025-27914 14600 SR 527-Irrig 12/01-12/31 7.60

36026-27914 SR 527 & Dumas Rd-Irrig 12/01-12/31 7.60

36365-27593 Dumas Rd Irrig 12/01-12/31 22.30

37034-30017 14721 12thAve SE-Irrig 12/01-12/31 47.60

37680-27914 0 33rd Dr & Northpointe Circle-lrrig 12/01-12/3 7.60

40191-27914 13315 45th Ave SB-Restroom 12/01-12/31 65.05

Total for Check Number 59733: o.oo 324.60
'

SMARSH Smarsh Inc 12/31/2018
INV00449002 Text Archiving Platform-Verizon Monthly 12/01- 273.72

INV00449002a Use Tax Text Archiving Platform-VerizonMonth -10.92

Total for Check Number 59734: 0.00 262.80

AP Checksby Date - Detail by Check Date (2/7/2019 1:13PM) Page 6

AGENDA ITEM #G.

Approval of Checks #59686 through #59811 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 132 of 148



Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount

Invoice No Description Reference

59735 SNOCOC Snohomish County Corrections 12/31/2018
2018-4809 Jail Service Fees-Nov ' 16,123.57

2018-4835 Jail ServiceFees-Dec 9,231.75

Totalfor Check Number 59735: 0.00 25,355.32

59736 SNOCOPW Snohomish County PublicWorks 12/31/2018
1000492194 RR7797-AidAgreement-RPM-Nov 3,528.73

1000492195 RR6l55-Luminaires-Nov 974.53

I000492l95a RR7554-164th SE & 9th Ave SE-Nov 3,591.94

I000492l95b RR7_57l-MillCrk Rd & Sea Hill-Nov 372.94

I000492195c RR7573-35thAve SE & 148th SE-Nov 169.29

Total for Check Number 59736: 0.00
1

8,637.43

59737 SNOCOSH1 Snohomish County Treasurer 12/31/2018
2018-4789 Inmate Medical Billing-Nov 240.19

Total for Check Number 59737: 0.00 240.19

59738 SNDPUBIN Sound Publishing Inc 12/31/2018
EDH838895 Pub of Ord No. 2018-843 24.08

Total for Check Number59738: 0.00 24.08

59739 SDISTCRI South District Court 12/31/2018
821085749 TrafficInfraction821085749-Myung K Han 47.15

8Zl085749a Traffic Infraction 8Zl085749-Myung K Han 0.85

8Z1085749b Traffic Infraction8Z1085749-Myung K 1-Ian 31.09

8Zl085749c Tra?ic Infraction 8Z1085749-Myung K I-Ian 16.91

8Zl085749d Traffic Infraction 8Zl085749-Myung K Han 23.00

8Z1085749e Traffic Infraction 821085749-MyungK Han . 5.00

8Z1085749f Traffic Infraction 8Zl085749-Myung K Han 10.00

8Z1085749g Traffic Infraction8Zl085749-Myung K Han 2.00

Total for Check Number 59739: 0.00 136.00

59740 SDISTCRT South District Court 12/31/2018
1000493149 Filing Fees SD Court-Dec 6,663.97

1000493149a Interpreter Costs-Dec 936.10

Total for Check Number 59740: 0.00 7,600.07

59741 STAPLEAD Staples Advantage 12/31/2018
1622277394 Red File Folders-City Contract 39.99

l622277394a Copy Paper 428.33

1622277394b Passport Supplies 52.38

Total for Check Number 59741: 0.00 520.70

59742 STARDMSV Stardom Services Inc 12/31/2018
012096-IN Janitorial Services-Nov-CHS 995.00

012096-lNa JanitorialServices—Nov-C1-IN 1,184.13

012096-lNb Janitorial Services—11/18 Restroom Clean-Up-Ni 75.00

012096-lNc Janitorial Services-Carpet Deep Cleaning-Nov-C 1,650.00

Total for Check Number 59742:. 0.00 3,904.13

59743 STERICYC Stericycle Inc , 12/31/2018
3004533374 Biomedical Waste Scrviccs-Monthly Fee 10.36

AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (2/7/2019 1:13PM) Page 7
p

AGENDA ITEM #G.

Approval of Checks #59686 through #59811 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 133 of 148



Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount

Invoice No -
‘ Description Reference ,

Total for Check Number 59743: 0.00 10.36

59744 Tl-IORBARIV Thorson Barnett & McDonald,P.C. 12/31/2018
80859 Prof Serv-MEBT Correction-Dec 1,326.00

Total for Check Number 59744: 0.00 1,326.00

59745 TrailerB Trailer Boss 12/31/2018
20094 1-MAXXD D7X72l0 Dump Trailer-Black6 x ll 8,042.71

Totalfor CheckNumber 59745: 0.00 8,042.71

59746 TRANSUN Trans Union LLC 12/31/2018
12809654 Basic Service MonthlyFee-Credit Checks ll/26- 44.16

Total for Check Number 59746: 0.00 44.16

59747 TLOLLC TransUnionRisk and Alternative 12/31/2018
839489 Background/Identity Investigations-Dec 27.61

Total for Check Number 59747: 0.00 27.61

59748 WASTRESO Washington State Treasurer's Office 12/31/2018
9

3rd Qtr Drug Forfeited Property 07/01/18-09/30/l 8 391.80

4th Qtr Drug Forfeited Property l0/0l/ 18-12/31/I8 462.17

Total for Check Number 59748: 0.00 853.97

59749 USBANK US Bank NA - Custody 12/31/2018
XXXXXXX139 lnvestrnent Custody Charges 12/01-12/31 32.00

Total for Check Number 59749: 0.00 32.00

59750 USIC USIC Locating Services, LLC 12/31/2018
312459 96 NC Loeates/80 Ticket Loeates 12/01-12/31 967.60

3 l2459a 96 NC Loeates/80 Ticket Loeates 12/01-12/31 967.60

Total for Check Number 59750: 0.00 1,935.20

59751 UULC UtilitiesUnderground LocationCenter 12/31/2018
8120188 On-CallLocationService-80 Loeates 51.60

812018821 On-Call Location Service-80 Loeates 51.60

Total for CheckNumber59751: 0.00 103.20

59752 VERIZON Verizon Wireless 12/31/2018
9820679981 Access & Usage Chgs ll/21-I2/20-City Cell Ph( 1,986.12

Total for Check Number 59752: 0.00 1,986.12

59753 WAALARM Washington Alarm 12/31/2018
452788 Service Call-Fire System-MC Library 386.40

Total for Check Number 59753:
A

0.00 386.40

59754 WASTPAT Washington State Patrol 12/31/2018
119004437 Background Checks-Dec 48.00

Total for Check Number 59754: 0.00 48.00

59755 WASTTRS Washington State Treasurer 12/31/2018
lst-4th Qtr Bldg State Surcharge lst-4th Qtr2018 2,469.35

AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (2/7/2019 1:13PM) Page 8

AGENDA ITEM #G.

Approval of Checks #59686 through #59811 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 134 of 148



Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount

Invoice No Description Reference

Total for Check Number 59755: 0.00 2,469.35

S9756 WEBQAINC WebQAInc 12/31/2018
1357-181116 GOVQAPublic Records Software 12.70000
1357-1812l8 SalesTax-GOVQAPublic Records Software 1,320.80

Totalfor Check Number 59756: 0.00 14,020.80

59757 WINTSERV West Interactive Services Corporation 12/31/2018
101264 Website Development-ThirdMilestone Payment 1,421.86

Total for Check Number 59757: 0.00 1,421.86

59758 WOLFEFR Wolfe Fire Protection Inc 12/31/2018
6468 Annual and 5 Year Inspection-FireSprinkler Sys 450.00

6469 Annual and 5 Year Inspection-FireSprinklerSys 450.00

Total for Check_Number 59758: 0.00 900.00

59759 WRIGHTJ Jere Wright 12/31/2018
Reimb Exp Reimb Expenses-Library Sink Aerator 7.86

Reimb Expa Reimb Expenses-Caulking CHS Windows 12.13

Total for Check Number 59759: 0.00 19.99

59760 OFSTTRS Office of State Treasurer 12/31/2018
lst-4th Qtr Due to WA State-40 PSEA-1 Jan-Dec 2018 75,794.57

lst-4th Qtra Due to WA State-50 PSEA-2 Jan-Dec 2018 44,492.63

lst-4th Qtrb Due to WA State-PSEA-3 Jan-Dec 2018 1,111.47
lst-4th Qtrc Due to WA State-JIS Jan-Dec 2018 35,128.71
lst-4th Qtrd Due to WA State-Trauma Care Jan-Dec 2018 7,685.56

lst-4th Qtre Due to WA State-School Zone Jan-Dec 2018 332.62
1st-4:11Qtrf Due to WA State-Lab Tests Jan-Dec 2018 181.58
lst-4th Qtrg Due to WA State-Auto Theft Jan-Dec 2018 15,379.21
1st-4thQtrh Due to WA State-Trauma Brain Injury Jan-Dec 2 2,878.05
1st-4thQtri Due to WA State-Hwy Safety Acct Jan-Dec 2018 603.23
1st-4thQtrj Due to WA State-Death Inv Acct Jan-Dec 2018 142.20
lst-4th Qtrk Due to WA State-WSP Hiway Acct Jan-Dec 201! 807.41
lst-4th Qtrl Due to WA State-DV Prev State Jan-Dec 2018 29.11

Total for Check Number 59760: 0.00 184,566.35

59761 SNOCTTR Snohomish County Treasurer 12/31/2018
lst-4th QtrCVC Crime Victims Compensation Jan-Dec 2018 2,659.60

Total for Check Number 59761: 0.00 2,659.60

Total for 12/31/2018: 0.00 1.392.3131-94

S9762 USPS USPS 01/18/2019
Spring 2019 Postage - 2019 Spring City Connection 2,083.30

Total for Check Number 59762: 0.00 2,083.30

Total for 1/18/2019: 0.00 2,033.30

59763 91ISUPPL 911Supply Inc
1

01/24/2019
69736 50 - Corporal Chevrons 207.00

AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (2/7/2019 1:13 PM) Page 9

AGENDA ITEM #G.

Approval of Checks #59686 through #59811 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 135 of 148



Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount

Invoice No Description Reference

69740 5 - PremierGold Bullion-S Eastman 19.25

Total for Check Number 59763: 0.00 226.25

59764 ACCELA Accela Inc #774375 01/24/2019
INV-ACC43453 SpringbrookAnnual Maintenance 2019-Finance 16,844.28

Total for Check Number 59764: 0.00 16,844.28

59765 ADI ADI 01/24/2019
TG207F02 2 - 12'Antenna Cable L Bracket-Library 38.60

TG207F02a 2 - 12' Antenna Cable L Bracket-CI-IN 38.59

TG207F03 Battery Tester-Solar Light Repair 358.46

Total for Check Number 59765: 0.00 435.65

59766 ADPLLC ADP, LLC 01/24/2019
528144834 ADP Payroll Services12/31 & WorkforceNow I

~
1,030.34

Total for Check Number 59766: 0.00 1,030.34

59767 INTEGRA Allstream 01/24/2019
15803719 T-1 Monthly Chgs-Jan 651.45

Total for Check Number 59767: 0.00 651.45

59768 AWCI Association of WA Cities 01/24/2019
67020 2019 Membership Dues 14,749.00
67315 AWC Workers‘ Comp Retro Program Svc Fee 20 7,055.04

Total for Check Number 59768: 0.00 21,804.04 ~

59769 BHCCONS BHC Consultants, LLC 01/24/2019
0010589 Bldg lnsp & Plan Review Services 12/01-12/31 2,504.48

Total for Check Number 59769: 0.00 2,504.48

59770 WMCA WMCA c/o Gina Anderson 01/24/2019
02516 2019 WMCA Academy & Conf Reg 03/ l2-03/ If 525.00

Total for Check Number 59770: 0.00 525.00

59771 CINTAS Cintas Corporation Loc. #460 01/24/2019
5

4014617552 Floor Mat Service 01/04 96.19
4014617552a Floor Mat Service 01/04 56.03
4015289804 Floor Mat Service 01/ 18 96.19
401 5289804a Floor Mat Servicc 01/18

, 56.03

Total for Check Number 59771: 0.00 304.44

59772 ClEDMOND City of Edmonds 01/24/2019
RGG-190001 Domestic Violence Coordinator-Jan 1,176.72

Total for Check Number 59772: 0.00 1,176.72

59773 CODPUBCO Code Publishing Company 01/24/2019
62374 Policies and Procedures-WebUpdate 01/14, Ord 266.03

Total for Check Number 59773: 0.00 266.03

59774 COMCAST Comcast 01/24/2019
84983102104570! High Speed Internet Fee 01/18-02/17 191.40

849831021072434 lntemet for ITS 01/14-02/13 106.40

AP Checks by Date - Detailby Check Date (2/7/2019 1:13 PM) Page 10

AGENDA ITEM #G.

Approval of Checks #59686 through #59811 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 136 of 148



Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount

Invoice No Description Reference

Total for Check Number 59774: 0.00 297.80

59775 DEPTENTS Department of Enterprise Services 01/24/2019
16144249 AdministrativeFee 2019 600.00

Total for Check Number 59775: 0.00 600.00

59776 FCICUSPV FCI Custom Police Vehicles 01/24/2019
16228 ReplaceA Circuit Breaker-Car #33 87.12

16370 Replace CEnCom Gold-Car#33 435.60

Total for CheckNumber 59776: 0.00 522.72

59777 GTENORTH Frontier 01/24/2019
425-316-0326 Alarm System Line Chgs-Cook House 01/ 16-02 $3.83

Total for Check Number 59777: 0.00 53.83

59778 GRYOSBRN Gray & Osborne Inc 01/24/2019
10 Prof Serv 35th Recon CM & Insp 12/09-01/05 64,721.05

Total for Check Number 59778: 0.00 64,721.05 '

59779 IACP-MEM IACP-Membership 01/24/2019
0033101 IACP MembershipDues-S White 75.00
0033102 IACP MembershipDues-B Foutch 75.00
0044447 IACP MembershipDues-G Elwin 190.00

Total for Check Number 59779: 0.00 340.00

59780 INTSTBAT Interstate All Battery Center 01/24/2019
1905701048941 3 12V22AH 90W SLA High Rate-School Zone 255.79
1905701049010 1 - 1.2V 2.5AH NIMH LSD IB-Library Flag Pol 9.60

Total for Check Number 59780: 0.00 265.39

59781 IWORQSYS iWorQSystems, Inc 01/24/2019
158785 iWorQSystems Internet So?ware Management 6 1,908.00

Total for Check Number 59781: 0.00 1,908.00

59782 KGCTYOF King County Finance 01/24/2019
91781 WRIAWatershedPlanning Interlocal 6,723.00

Total for CheckNumber59782: 0.00 6,723.00
'

59783 LESSCHW Les Schwab 01/24/2019
39500425397 2 Tires & Wheel Spin Balance-PW 469.17

Total for Check Number 59783: 0.00 469.17

59784 Lewis Co Lewis County Sheriff's O?ice 01/24/2019
01/04 LeadershipTraining 03/ 14-M Schuermeyer 60.00

Totalfor Check Number 59784: 0.00 60.00

59785 LEXIPOL Lexipol LLC 01/24/2019
27028 I Year Law Enforcement Policy ManualUpdate 4,155.00

Total for Check Number 59785: 0.00 4,155.00

59786 NATIONWI Nationwide Mutual Insurance Co 01/24/2019

AP ChecksbyDate - Detail by Check Date (2/7/2019 1:13PM) Page 11

AGENDA ITEM #G.

Approval of Checks #59686 through #59811 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 137 of 148



Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount

Invoice No Description Reference

C-2084007 Major Medical Plan-Bagira 526.18

Total for CheckNumber 59786: 0.00 526.18

59787 PACAIR Paci?c Air Control, Inc. 01/24/2019
17571 HVAC Repairs HP 17 & 20-CHN 714.29

Total for Check Number59787: 0.00 714.29

59788 CLYDEWST PacWest Machinery 01/24/2019
20327907 2 Sweeper Brooms-PW 9 & PW 10 430.53

Total for Check Number59788: 0.00 430.53

59789 PAKOR Pakor Inc 01/24/2019
8033653 3 Cases-PassportFilm 705.30

Total for CheckNumber 59789: 0.00 705.30

59790 PILCHVT PilchuckVet Hospital 01/24/2019
229648 Apoquel Tab-Bagira 158.55

Total for Check Number 59790: 0.00 158.55

59791 PLATT Platt Electric Supply, Inc 01/24/2019
T970277 2 — PHI LED INTA-Street Light Repairs-44thAv 444.48

U267390 3 - PHI MHC70 U MP4K ELITE-Library 45.78

Total for Check Number 59791: 0.00 490.26

59792 WASPC WA. Assoc of Sheriffs & PoliceChiefs 01/24/2019
Dues 2019-00219 2019 WASPC Dues-G Elwin 245.00

Total for Check Number 59792: 0.00 245.00

59793 SNOCPUD PUD No. 1 of Snohomish County 01/24/2019
200101434 2725 Seattle Hill Rd 12/11-01/08 15.66

201752961 15429 1/2 Bothell Everett Hwy 12/08-01/10 20.01

202693008 15720 Main St 12/15-01!15 1,884.93

202852059 15720Main St UnitB 12/15-01/15 342.42

202959052 4842 SAC 12/08-01/10 93.67

Total for Check Number 59793: 0.00 2,356.69

59794 PSCLEANA Puget Sound Clean AirAgency 01/24/2019
19-061S 2019 Clean Air Assessment 16,218.00

Total for Check Number 59794: 0.00 16,218.00

59795 PUGETSO Puget Sound Energy 01/24/2019
200004765331 15720 Main St 12/17-01/16 384.93

200004765463 15728 Main St 12/17-01/16 666.81

Total for Check Number 59795: 0.00 1,051.74

59796 Service Service Electric Company, Inc 01/24/2019
910169 Troubleshoot Circuit Tripping-WSide of 44th & 418.18

Total for Check Number 59796: 0.00 418.18

59797 SNOCOM Snohomish County 911 01/24/2019

1084 Dispatch Service-January 19.59057

AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (2/7/2019 1:13PM) Page 12

AGENDA ITEM #G.

Approval of Checks #59686 through #59811 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 138 of 148



_
Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Void Checks Check Amount

Invoice No Description Reference

Total for Check Number 59797: 0.00 19,690.67

S9798 SNOCOAD Snohomish County Auditor 01/24/2019
I-VR-ll 2018 Voter RegistrationFile Maintenance 24,551.02

Total for Check Number 59798: 0.00 24,551.02

59799 SNDPUBIN Sound Publishing Inc 01/24/2019
EDH840973 Vintage-DAPublic Hearing 49.88

Total for Check Number 59799: 0.009 49.88

59800 STAND Standard Ins. Company RA 01/24/2019
600156-0001 Life, AD & D & LTD Prem-MEBT-ERPaid-Jan 3,838.31

Total for CheckNumber 59800: 0.00 3,838.31

59801 STAND2 Standard Ins. Company RA 01/24/2019
600156-0002 Survivor Prem-MEBT-ER Paid-Jan 2,018.56

Total for Check Number59801: 0.00 2,018.56

59802 STOWE Stowe Development & Strategies, LLC 01/24/2019
MI 007 InterimCity Manager Services 12/03-12/31 22,000.00

Total for Check Number 59802: 0.00 22,000.00

S9803 SUMLAW Summit Law Group 01/24/2019
100500 Prof Serv-General Labor-Through 12/31 1,284.00

Total for Check Number 59803: 0.00 1,284.00

59804 TERMINIX Terminix ProcessingCenter 01/24/2019
382332374 Pest Control-WO#15929747089-MC Library 80.59

Total for Check Number 59804: 0.00 80.59

59805 THYSSEN ThyssenkruppElevator Corp. 01/24/2019
3004364336 Elevator Maintenance 01/01-03/31 1,277.96

Total for Check Number 59805: 0.00 1,277.96

59806 UNWAYSNC United Way of Snohomish County 01/24/2019
01/10 United Way EE for January 2019 242.00

Total for Check Number 59806: 0.00 242.00

59807 UNUM UNUM Life Ins. Co. of America 01/24/2019
0220603-O35 Long Term Care (LTC EE) .1Klci 01/01-12/31 882.00

Total for Check Number 59807: 0.00 882.00

59808 WCIA WA Cities Insurance Authority 01/24/2019
14346 2019 Liability/Property Prog Assessment 122,936.00

l4346a 2019Liability/Property Prog Assessment 10,000.00

Total for Check Number 59808: 0.00 132,936.00

59809 WABO Washington Assoc of Bldg off 01/24/2019
4 WAB020l9 WABO 2019 MembershipDues 95.00

AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (2/7/2019 1:13 PM) Page 13

AGENDA ITEM #G.

Approval of Checks #59686 through #59811 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 139 of 148



Void Checks

0.00

Check Amount

95.00

Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date

Invoice No Description Reference

Total for Check Number 59809:

59810 AFSCME WSCCCE, AFSCME, AFL-CIO 01/24/2019
December Union Dues-AFSCME-Dec

S9811 ZUMAR Zumar Industries, Inc.
26168 10-VariousStreet Signs

Total for Check Number 59810:

01/24/2019

Total for Check Number 59811:

Total for 1/24/2019:

Report Total (126 checks):

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

1,171.25

1,171.25

1,105.66

1,105.66

360,422.26

1,755,387.50

AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (2/7/2019 1:13PM) Page 14

AGENDA ITEM #G.

Approval of Checks #59686 through #59811 and ACH Wire Transfers in the A... Page 140 of 148



J

\\
i...1

Z‘=,—j

M111/Cgreek
Date: February 19, 2019 W A S H I N G T O N

Payroll Check Batches
Dated Check Numbers Amount
1/25/2019 AC]-I Automatic Deposit Checks $148,261.81
1/25/2019 ACH Wire—FWT & Medicare Taxes $25,581.13
1/25/2019 ACH Wire MEBT- Wilmington Trust $27,208.32
1/25/2019 ACH Wire- ICMA RC—Def. Comp $1,762.87
1/25/2019 ACH Wire—BAC- Flex Spending Acct $1,778.00
1/25/2019 ACH Wire — BAC — Health Savings Acct $324.98

Total $204,917.11

Voided Checks
Numbers Explanation

CLAIMS APPROVAL

We, the undersigned Finance/Audit Committee of the City of Mill Creek, recommend approval of the
ACH Automatic Deposit checks and ACH Wire Transfers in the amount of $204,917. 11.

We recommend approval of the above stated amount with the following exceptions:

Councilmember

Councilmember

G:\F|NANCE\Restricted (old I drive)\Payro||\Voucher Coversheets\2019\Payro|| VoucherApprova| 02122019.docx
2/14/2019

AGENDA ITEM #H.

Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $204,917.11 (Audit Com... Page 141 of 148



V
.0 _.mm

m
m

§.~...m
.m

t

§.~$.nt

3.~E
.n:.

8d8d

E
N

E
.32.

2.§m
.m

~

bm
E

E
:m

_m
o_w

c?m

m
_x.m

_.m
m

ebm
E

E
:m

_8_m
_§m

__o._m
m

_£
m

coz
m

n_o>
\>

m
nw

.n_\m
E

m
E

«m
:_u<

m
xum

zo
«::O

u0(
50>

E
o.E

uw
gnm

o
E

:oE
<

_S
o._.

.6u<
gm

oam
o695.

w
o_>

._m
m__:u_

ussm
o

m
m

xm
»

.33

_m
co

m
m

m.:JO
>

.m
oxw

._.

.£__nm
:

.550
m

338
xcm

m

w
._m

«m
:m

.._.
.650

8.0
xm

._.§:m
_n_

_8?m

ood
xm

._.m
E

ou:_
_m

oo._

oo.o
m

m
.

E
w

E
m

m
m

m
m

< ucau
E

m
cm

m
.w

._9:o>
>

oo.o
m

m
.

.:w
E

m
m

m
m

m
< u::u_

E
m

cw
m

.m
.$:o>

>

oo.o
m

m
.

xm
._. ._m

:m
_._.

oodom
m

m .
m

ocm
S

m
..__

m
>

m
m

._ _m
o_um

s_B?m
m

ax?
m

m
.

m
u:m

5m
:_

m
>

m
m

;__m
o_um

_229w

cod
m

m .
w

o:m
S

m
c_

o>
m

m
._

_E
m

u_
E

?w

m
m

.om
—

m
m .

m
o:m

S
m

:_
m

>
um

._
_E

m
u_

E
?w

oo.o
m

m
. .m

s 3
nm

m
_n_>

:oE
>

o_aE
m

::
E

?w

cod
m

m
.

_u<
m

o:m
5w

:_
x

5m
m

.
E

m
uw

cod
m

m .
m

u:m
S

m
c_

>
_nm

m
_oE?w

cod
m

m
. .
.__u<mo:m

._:m
_.__Em

E
>

o_aE
m

:3
m

u?w

cod
m

m
.

m
u:m

5m
:_

E
m

E
>

o_nE
m

.5
29m

oo.o
xm

k
w

E
ooE

E
?w

E
w

gm
m

m
:02

8.0
xm

._.m
E

oo..__
29w

cod
xm

._. :._m
F

_>
o_Q

E
m

:D
_m

_w
_um

u_

oo.o
m

E
m

E
>

m
n_m

o:?m
_m

m
<

E
=

_E
m

_n_
<

m
m

_O
o

8.0
m

m .
_u<xssm

.2832

8.9
m

m .xm
sm

28_B
s_

8.0
m

m
.

._U
<m

_m
o_U

m
_>

_

m
o.m

~o_m
m

m
.

28:52
B

ow
ed

m
m .

28_B
_2

8.9
m

m .
_u<zcaom

_m
_8m

8.9
m

m
.

.€5m
w

_m
_8w

8.0
m

m
. .a?am

m
_m

_8w

cod
m

m
u:m

>
u<H690

m
E

ooc_
uw

E
m

m
_

bm
rm

m
m

w
m

r
xu._. m

E
ou=

_
_w

._m
vm

u
um

?m
o

m
m

xm
._.

m
8~§:o_2m

o
m

i
m

.m
_nE

oo
w

_u>
oH

m
E

m
~w

m
—

oN
\m

N
\E ._.m

m
_ _>

_n_om
” 5

ém
oa

.
E

m
$oQ

m
N

:o“m
.m

o
>

w
n_

m
S

N
:

um
w

>
\.:O

«E
m

m
i

«$3
£52

0598
E

ooicm
o

8_am
w

xm
eo

___s_5
.¢_o

.
>

>
o<

;:8E
oo

>
._m

E
E

:m
_m

o=
w

=
S

w

A
G

EN
D

A ITEM
 #H

.

Payroll and Benefit AC
H

 Paym
ents in the Am

ount of $204,917.11 (Audit C
om

...
Page 142 of 148



Payment Confirmation

Company: City of MillCreek
Requester: Kottke, Sandy

Run Date: 01/25/2019 2:49:50 PM CST

Domestic High Value (Wire)
Payment Categoryzurgentlwire

Status:
Transaction Number:

Debit Account Information

Debit Bank:
Debit Account:

Debit Account Name:
Debit Currency:

Beneflclary Details

Beneficiary Name:
Bene?ciary Address:

Bene?ciary City:
Bene?ciary Postal Code:

Bene?ciary Country:

Payment Details

Credit Currency:
Credit Amount:

Optional Infomiation

Sender's Reference Number:

Additional Routing

lnterrnediary Bank ID:

Control Information

Pending Approval
191 PF4934F’Bl1 595

—
B
Treas Checking
USD

MATRIXTRUST COM PANY

US - United States of America

USD
27.20832

-

/

CITY MILLCREEK

: sankottke

Bank ofAmerica
MerrillLynch

Template Name: MATRIXIMEBT
Template Code: VVILTRUST

Beneficiary Account: C
Beneficiary Bank ID: —

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK.NA
1111 POLARIS PKWY
COLUMBUS
US » United States ofAmerica

Beneficiary Email:
Beneficiary Mobile Number:

Value Date: 01/25/2019 /

Beneficiary lnfonnation: City of MillCreek n3177e

Receiver Information:

Input Time: 01/25/2019 2:49:40 PM CST

AGENDA ITEM #H.

Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $204,917.11 (Audit Com... Page 143 of 148



Payment Confirmation

Company: City of MillCreek
Requester: Kottke, Sandy
Run Date: 01/25/2019 2:47:09 PM CST

Domestic High Value (Wire)
Payment Categoryzurgentfwire

Status: Pending Approval
Transaction Number: 191PF46528BH0661

Debit Account lnfonnation

Debit Bank: T
Debit Account“

Debit Account Name: Treas Checking
Debit Currency: USD

Bene?ciary Details

Bene?ciary Name: ICMARC
Bene?ciary Address: P.O. Box64553

Bene?ciarycity: Baltimore
Bene?ciary Postal Code: 21264-4553

Bene?ciary Country: US - UnitedStateslofAmerica

Payment Details

Credit Currency: USD
CreditAmount: 1,762.87

Optional lnforrnation

Senders Reference Number: 302029

Additional Routing

Intermediary Bank ID:

Control lnforrnation

Input: sankottke

'\

Bankof America ’’7(
MerrillLynch

Template Name: ICMA457 Plan
Template Code

Bene?ciary Account
Beneficiary Bank ID

: ICMA

: —
m

MANUFACTURERSANDTRADERSTR C
ONE MANDT PLAZA.15TH FL
BUFFALO
US - United States of America

Beneficiary Email:
Beneficiary Mobile Number:

Value Date

Bene?ciary lnfonnation

: 01/25/2019

: Cityof MillCreek 302029

Receiver Information:

Input Time : 01/25/2019 2:46:59 PM CST

AGENDA ITEM #H.

Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $204,917.11 (Audit Com... Page 144 of 148



RptBatchSumViewFom1 Page 1 of 1

ACH Cash Pro Online Report Date: 01/25/2019

City of Mill Creek Report Time: 02:30:20 PM

Batch Summary Report by ID Number

Company Name: City of Mill 01 Effective Date: 01/28I2019/
ACH ID: jun Batch Sequence: 2

Application Name: CCD Payments and Collections Database Name: BAC

Batch Status: Entered Created By: SANKOTTKE

Released By:

Name ID Amount D/C Bank ID Account # E Trace #_
T

__
1 _: T 99 T

BAC EENEFITADMIN
$1,778.00/ C 0 — C

Total Amount in Batch Total Count in Batch

Debits $0.00 0

Credits $1,778.00 1

Prenotes $0.00 0

Grand Total Amount Grand Total Count

Debits $0.00 0

Credits $1,778.00 1

Prenotes $0.00 0

https://cpo-ach.bankofamerica.com/wcmpr/rptbatchsumviewfo1-m.jsp?source=BATCHSU...1/25/2019

AGENDA ITEM #H.

Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $204,917.11 (Audit Com... Page 145 of 148



RptBatchSumViewFom1 Page 1 of 1

ACH Cash Pro Online Report Date: 01/25/2019

City of Mill Creek Report Time: 02:27:44 PM

Batch Summary Report by ID Number

Company Name: City of Mill01 Effective Date: 01/28/2019

ACH ID:
_

Batch Sequence: 1
1

Application Name: CCD Payments and Collections Database Name: BAC

Batch Status: Entered Created By: SANKOTTKE

Released By:

Name ID Amount D/C Bank lD Account #
@ Trace it_ __ __

1 T 1- E9 B

BAC EENEF”AD""'“
$324.98 c j sj c

/

..
Total Amount in Batch Total Count in Batch

Debits $0.00 0

Credits $324.98 1

Prenotes $0.00 0

Grand Total Amount Grand Total Count

Debits $0.00 0

Credits $324.98 1

Prenotes $0.00 0

https2//cpo-ach.bankofamerica.com/wcmpr/rptbatchsumviewfonn.jsp?source=BATCHSU... 1/25/2019

AGENDA ITEM #H.

Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $204,917.11 (Audit Com... Page 146 of 148



 

Tentative Council Meeting Agendas 
Subject to change without notice 

Last updated: February 14, 2019 
 

 

February 26, 2019 

(Agenda Summary due February 18) 

 2019 Pavement Marking Award  

 Study Session: Facility Rental Policy  

 Report: Quarterly Financial Report  

 Report: Council Liaison Positions 

 Study Session: The Farm Development 

Agreement (subject to final negotiation) 

 

March 5, 2019 

(Agenda Summary due February 25)  

 Presentation: Bond Introduction 

 Study Session: Community Funding Update 

 

March 12, 2019 

(Agenda Summary due March 4) 

 Presentation: Waste Management  

 Presentation: Northshore Senior Center 

 Report: Procurement Procedures Manual 

 Report: Hawk Signal Update  

 Executive Session: Review of City Manager 

Candidate Applicants 

 

March 22, 2019 

 City Manager Finalists – Community & Staff 

Engagement 

 

March 23, 2019 

 City Manager Finalists – Council Interviews 

 

March 26, 2019 

(Agenda Summary due March 18) 

 Park & Recreation Board Appointment 

 Sports Park Concession Stand Contract 

 Reading/Approval of Reimbursement 

Resolution 

 Study Session: Compensation Strategies 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FEBRUARY 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

          1  2  

       

3  4  5  6  7  8  9  

       

10  11  12  13  14  15  16  

       

17  18  19  20  21  22  23  

       

24  25  26  27  28      

       

MARCH 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

          1  2  

       

3  4  5  6  7  8  9  

       

10  11  12  13  14  15  16  

       

17  18  19  20  21  22  23  

       

24 31 25  26  27  28  29  30  

       

APRIL 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

  1  2  3  4  5  6  

       

7  8  9  10  11  12  13  

       

14  15  16  17  18  19  20  

       

21  22  23  24  25  26  27  

       

28  29  30          

       

Council 

Council 

Council 

Council 

Council 

Council 

Council 

Council 

Council 

AGENDA ITEM #K.

City Manager Council Planning Schedule Storm Response Update Page 147 of 148



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Work Session Topics for Discussion 

 Business signs  

 MCCA storm water discussions  

 Utility Project Management  

 Hotel/Motel Theater Tax  

 Mill Creek Blvd Vision  

 ST3 Stations 

 Hawk/SR 96 – Consideration of Speed 

 5G Presentation 

 Legislative Retreat 

 Gold Star Memorial 

 Dobson Remillard Property 

 Fleet Program 

 Public Works Month Proclamation 

 Bike Lanes 

 

MAY 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

      1  2  3  4  

       

5  6  7  8  9  10  11  

       

12  13  14  15  16  17  18  

       

19  20  21  22  23  24  25  

       

26  27  28  29  30  31    

       

JUNE 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

            1  

       

2  3  4  5  6  7  8  

       

9  10  11  12  13  14  15  

       

16  17  18  19  20  21  22  

       

23 30 24  25  26  27  28  29  

       

JULY 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

  1  2  3  4  5  6  

       

7  8  9  10  11  12  13  

       

14  15  16  17  18  19  20  

       

21  22  23  24  25  26  27  

       

28  29  30  31        

       

Council 

Council 

Council 

Council 

Council 

Council 

Council 

Council 

Council 

AGENDA ITEM #K.

City Manager Council Planning Schedule Storm Response Update Page 148 of 148


	Agenda
	B. The Farm at Mill Creek - Process for Consideration and Proposed Vision
	B. Staff PowerPoint Presentation - Handout
	B. Developer PowerPoint Presentation - Handout
	C. AWC Center for Quality Communities Scholarship Nomination
	D. Ordinance Amending the MCMC Related to Code Enforcement
	D. PowerPoint Presentation - Handout
	E. Exploration Park Project - Construction Management and Inspection Contract
	F. Ratification of Proclamation of Local Emergency
	G. Check Vouchers
	H. Payroll Vouchers
	K. Council Planning Schedule

